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COVER STORY

In the immediate aftermath of the Great East Japan Earthquake, the Fields Group, 

together with Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd. and all other participating Group 

companies, came together to establish the Ultraman Foundation.

In seeking to offer our heartfelt encouragement to those most impacted by the 

disaster, especially to the children who are our hope and essential to creating a new 

future in the region, we channeled our aspirations for the future into the character 

Ultraman, symbolic protector of Earth and peace, and initiated support activities 

from the Ultraman Foundation that will last well into the future.

In this annual report, alongside business performance and management 

strategies, we introduce our efforts to assist with recovery, like the Ultraman 

Foundation, as well as other social initiatives. Our hope in doing so is that 

shareholders and investors will better understand the motivation behind these 

measures and continue to offer their support for our endeavors.
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Forward-looking Statements
This Annual Report includes forward-looking statements about Fields Corporation and its Group companies (“Fields Group”). Forward-

looking statements, including the plans and forecasts of operations in this report, are based on information currently available to the Fields 

Group and involve unknown risks and uncertainties. Any change in risks, uncertainties and other factors upon which such forward-looking 

statements are based may cause Fields Group’s actual results, performance, achievements or financial position to be materially different 

from future results, performance, achievements or financial position expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements.
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Feature: The Great East Japan Earthquake – Impact and Recovery
On March 11, 2011, an earthquake measuring 9.0 in magnitude struck a large expanse of eastern Japan.
The disaster left more than 20,000 people dead or missing in the hardest hit areas. It also precipitated the largest 
accident at a nuclear power plant in Japanese history and a severe shortage in electricity.
Pachinko halls were affected in the disaster, as were electronic component factories supplying gaming machine makers 
that came to a halt.
Despite these hardships, we put our faith in tomorrow and devoted ourselves to the recovery effort.
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Consolidated Financial Highlights

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2007

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2008

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2009

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2010

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2011

Results of Operations (millions of yen)

Net sales ¥  85,321 ¥101,818 ¥  73,035 ¥  66,342 ¥103,593

Gross profit 29,248 34,544 24,024 26,889 35,129

Gross profit margin (%) 34.3 33.9 32.9 40.5 33.9

Operating income 8,944 13,158 1,960 8,124 13,136

Operating margin (%) 10.5 12.9 2.7 12.2 12.7

Net income (loss) 3,710 5,296 (1,481) 3,289 7,520

Net margin (%) 4.3 5.2 — 5.0 7.3

Financial Position (millions of yen)

Total assets 66,081 69,168 52,064 81,329 78,971

Net assets 42,836 46,331 39,496 41,187 47,021

Shareholders’ equity 41,115 44,485 39,463 41,064 46,779

Cash Flows (millions of yen)

Cash flows from operating activities 5,293 11,127 4,147 8,429 8,005

Cash flows from investing activities (4,772) (14,604) (6,182) (1,011) (4,356)

Cash flows from financing activities 1,488 (1,384) 602 (2,687) (3,915)

Per-share Data (yen)

Earnings (loss) per share ¥  10,692 ¥  15,263 ¥   (4,271) ¥    9,796 ¥  22,643

Net assets per share 118,487 128,201 117,326 123,645 140,853

Dividends per share 4,000 4,500 4,500 4,500 5,000

Key Financial Indicators (%)

Return (loss) on equity (ROE) 9.2 12.4 (3.5) 8.2 17.1

Return on assets (ROA) 12.0 17.3 1.6   11.6 17.1

Shareholders’ equity ratio 62.2 64.3 75.8   50.5 59.2

Payout ratio 37.4 29.5 —   45.9 22.1

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2007

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2008

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2009

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2010

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2011

Pachinko/pachislot Machine Unit Sales

Number of pachinko/pachislot machines sold 511,247 484,534 331,205 449,880 480,273

By type

Pachinko 345,823 273,981 202,525 330,734 262,614

Pachislot 165,424 210,553 128,680 119,146 217,659

By alliance partner

Sammy Group 79,711 127,670 41,536 28,762 121,691

SANKYO Group 366,619 329,965 262,087 363,056 306,585

Olympia 44,929 8,313 447 4,908 —

Enterrise — — — 2,498 16,119

Other manufacturers 19,988 18,586 27,135 50,656 35,878
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	 Net sales

	 Cash flows from operating activities 	 Cash flows from investing activities 	 Cash flows from financing activities

	 Net income (loss) (left)
	Net margin (right)

	 Operating income (left)
	Operating margin (right)

	 Shareholders’ equity (left)
	Shareholders’ equity ratio (right)

	 Dividends per share (left)
	Payout ratio (right)

	Return (loss) on equity (ROE)
	Return on assets (ROA)

Net income

128.6%UP

Net sales

56.2%UP

Operating income

61.7%UP
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Hidetoshi Yamamoto

Chairman & CEO

Message from the Chairman and CEO

Allow me to first express our sympathies for those whose lives have been affected by the Great East Japan 

Earthquake, and offer our sincerest hopes for a rapid recovery in the region.

The Fields Group has taken attentive steps to offer the greatest level of cooperation we can muster in sup-

porting the post-disaster recovery effort. In particular, we believe it is essential to tirelessly pursue activities that 

support the children who will usher in a new future for us all. With this in mind, the entire Fields Group has 

united to form the Ultraman Foundation. This foundation represents our pledge to provide firm and steadfast 

support for the physical and psychological well-being of people in the affected region, including caring for the 

mental health of those left emotionally scarred by the traumatic events of March 11, 2011.

The Greatest Leisure for All People

04
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The Greatest Leisure for All People

Japanese industry has long worked to deliver the kind of value that people across the world seek, an 

approach that has resulted in major profit opportunities and dynamic growth. In particular, our maturing society 

in the 21st century is underpinned by trading ventures, which have brought prosperity to Japan’s citizens, as 

well as advances in healthcare and technology that have created more leisure time for people. In turn, this new-

found leisure has spurred diverse needs around ways to enjoy it.

The corporate philosophy of Fields and the Fields Group is “The Greatest Leisure for All People.” Guided by 

this view, we deliver products and services in answer to this growth in leisure time that embody high entertain-

ment value. At the same time, we have studied and researched approaches to enjoying leisure time that will lead 

to a future where people are happier and well-adjusted.

When Fields went public in 2003, we advocated a business scheme centered firmly on content as one of the 

strategies for spearheading future growth. Since then, this core business model continues as strong as ever and 

continues to evolve by acquiring, owning and creating exceptional intellectual property (IP), and by repeatedly 

assembling and merging cutting-edge creative elements and the latest technology.

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, we welcomed companies to the Group that are leaders in special-

ized areas, such as Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd., and also established and entrenched other schemes 

through a strengthening of alliances with influential partner companies. Success continues to steadily emerge 

from our multifaceted development of content across a range of fields not limited to pachinko/pachislot field 

including from our drive to enhance and expand content usage in mobile and online services. When and where 

these forward-looking measures resonate with the public, I am confident that they will translate into new earn-

ings opportunities and improved corporate value for the Fields Group.

We are committed at the Group to creating entertainment that engages people with diverse values in new and 

exciting ways. In parallel, the entire Fields family will come together as one to help bring happiness to people in 

every corner of society through our business activities, even as we consistently strive to be deserving of the trust 

that our stakeholders have in the Fields Group.

In closing, I would like to express our gratitude for the support of our corporate philosophy and the confi-

dence that our stakeholders have shown in us thus far. We invite you to expect great things from the future that 

Fields and the Fields Group will bring to pass, and ask for your continued support and understanding as we 

move forward.

September 2011

Fields Corporation   Annual Report 2011
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Management Interview

Takashi Oya
President & COO

P06–09
q	Position in the entertainment business

q	Performance evaluation for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011

q	Current condition of the pachinko/pachislot market and Fields’ 
accomplishments in the market

q	Impact of the Great East Japan Earthquake

q	Fields’ strengths in the pachinko/pachislot business

P10–12
q	Prospects for the domestic entertainment market

q	Successes achieved by Group businesses

q	Future plans for group operations

P13
q	Business plans and earnings expectations for the fiscal year 

ending March 31, 2012

q	Message for investors and shareholders
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This is in line with our corporate philosophy of providing “The Greatest Leisure for All People.” 

Based on this vision, we are working to build a business that spans the very diverse field of enter-

tainment. The massive earthquake and tsunami that hit eastern Japan on March 11, 2011, was an 

event that gave us pause to reconsider the entire foundation of our business. Many individuals and 

organizations, both within and outside Japan, are eager to do something that can help people in 

the affected region to rebuild their lives. For that reason, very soon after the earthquake, Fields 

established the Ultraman Foundation which is organizing a multitude of efforts to help create a 

brighter future for children affected by the quake.

Specifically, this Foundation has taken steps to provide both material and moral support to the 

region, from distributing cooked food after the disaster to raising relief funds and putting on shows 

for children featuring Ultraman. The cheers and smiling faces of the children who attended these 

shows once again reminded us of what a strong encouraging influence the Ultraman character can 

have—we could truly feel in our bones the power of this character, and how many people derive 

inspiration and encouragement from Ultraman-related products and shows.

In addition, the entertainment business faces pressure due to the debate about whether 

pachinko/pachislot have a gambling aspect. However, pachinko/pachislot provided a diversion and 

source of entertainment to people in the regions affected by the quake, while pachinko halls were 

used widely as evacuation centers or for holding community activities. The Group has been making 

efforts to promote a healthy form of pachinko/pachislot entertainment, and the events that followed 

the earthquake and tsunami have reinforced our determination to promote pachinko/pachislot as a 

valuable part of the entertainment industry throughout Japan.

Entertainment, in general, refers to an activity that provides joy and pleasure to a large group of 

people. We are working to develop an entertainment business that provides entertainment through 

a variety of sources, from pachinko/pachislot to mobile content, movies, publishing, animation, 

sports and other entertainment-related activities, all of which generate value by entertaining 

people. Hopefully these efforts will earn and justify the continued support of shareholders, inves-

tors, and all other stakeholders as well.

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, consolidated net sales rose 56.2% year on year, to 

¥103.5 billion. Operating income grew 61.7%, to ¥13.1 billion, ordinary income increased by 

76.3%, to ¥13.6 billion, and net income rose 128.6% year on year, to ¥7.5 billion. All of these 

figures except operating income were new record highs for the Company.

In the core Pachinko/Pachislot Business, the Company took advantage of a reviving pachislot 

market by launching several new machines that feature more entertainment and game-related 

play. Among these were pachislot machines based on popular video game and animation titles, 

such as Onimusha: Dawn of Dreams and MOBASLO Evangelion—for your own wish. These prod-

ucts have received very positive reactions from fans, and sales of each of these two machines are 

expected to account for 10% of total market sales this year. By doing its best to anticipate market 

trends, the Company is working to establish this business as a firm foundation for revenues.

Meanwhile, earnings from Group operations, which include numerous Group companies in 

various sectors of the entertainment business, have begun to recover, putting earnings for the 

entire Group back into the black. In April 2010, two new subsidiaries were added to the Fields 

Group—Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd. and Digital Frontier Inc. These subsidiaries not only 

Q:	H ow does Fields position itself in the entertainment business?

A:	We like to say that our goal is “to contribute products that can bring joy and 
pleasure to as many people as possible.”

Q:	W hat is the evaluation of your performance for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011?

A:	The Pachinko/Pachislot Business is our most stable source of income, allowing 
Fields to steadily develop other Group businesses.

Fields Corporation   Annual Report 2011
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greatly broaden the range of Group operations, but also are making substantial contributions to 

earnings and helping to create synergy within the Group that can have a concrete impact on 

performance.

Revised regulations on pachislot machines, among other factors, have caused this market to con-

tract over the past few years. However, in the fiscal year just ended, the number of machines in 

operation began to rise once more. Furthermore, all pachislot manufacturers have begun to con-

sider the tastes and interests of pachislot fans, and have started introducing machines that address 

this demand. This has invigorated the pachislot market as a whole. We think this is generating a 

positive cycle that will propel market growth even more strongly in the future.

In the pachinko market, meanwhile, companies are taking steps, on their own initiative, to limit 

use of machines that have strong gambling characteristics. In addition, many pachinko halls 

across the country have adopted low-cost strategies, in which they install used pachinko machines 

and lend pachinko balls at lower rates. Together, these two trends temporarily caused sales of new 

machines to decline. However, now that manufacturers are focusing on machines with more of an 

entertainment theme, and less emphasis on the gambling aspect, the market has become health-

ier. We think the pachinko market is moving onto a recovery track.

Considering these market conditions, Fields has made a point of designing its products to have 

less appeal to gambling sentiment, and concentrates on products that offer entertainment. The 

Company launched six new pachislot machines during the fiscal year, and as a result, recorded a 

record high unit sales figure of 217,659 machines (an increase of 82.7% year on year). This gives 

Fields a 24.5% share of the pachislot market,* marking the second consecutive year in which the 

Company was first in the industry in terms of market share. In the pachinko machine market, four 

new machines were launched including CR Evangelion—Evangelical of the beginnings, a product 

in collaboration with blockbuster content. However, due to the temporary lull in the industry, men-

tioned above, unit sales declined 20.6% year on year to 262,614 units. Fields’ share of total 

market sales* was 9.1%, about the same level as last year.

* Unit sales figures based on Fields’ own internal research.

In the Tohoku region, where there was extensive earthquake damage, around 50 pachinko halls 

were totally destroyed, while rolling power outages to conserve electric power reduced the operat-

ing hours of other facilities. In addition, many semiconductor manufacturers and other electronic 

parts suppliers have extensive production operations in the Tohoku region. The damage to their 

factories delayed parts supply, and forced many pachinko machine manufacturers to delay the 

launch of new products.

However, the industry as a whole stepped up to lend support to the rebuilding and recovery 

efforts in Tohoku, and cooperated in efforts to conserve power. Furthermore, the disaster 

prompted people in Japan to seek forms of recreation and entertainment that are “inexpensive, 

nearby and short-term.” As a result, machine utilization rates at pachinko halls across the country 

have rebounded to even higher levels than were typical before the earthquake. Furthermore, parts 

(%)

(%)

Change in Share of Pachislot Machine 
Sales Volume

Change in Share of Pachinko Machine 
Sales Volume

Damage to Pachinko Halls

Pachinko halls completely  
destroyed in the disaster

52 (0.4%)

Completely  
destroyed halls

Iwate Prefecture 15

Miyagi Prefecture 25

Tochigi Prefecture  7

Fukushima Prefecture  5

Pachinko  
halls nationwide

12,479
(As of March 31,  

2011)

(National Police Agency statistics)

(As of April 15, 2011, announced 
by Zennichiyuren)

Q:	W hat is the current condition of the pachinko/pachislot market, and what has Fields accomplished 
in this market?

A:	The market for pachinko/pachislot products is beginning to recover. Fields has 
focused on developing products that provide greater entertainment value, and this 
has built up earnings.

Q:	W hat impact did the Great East Japan Earthquake have on the industry?

A:	The earthquake and tsunami damaged many pachinko halls in the Tohoku region, 
as well as the factories of component manufacturers who supply parts for our 
pachinko machines. However, the region is now starting to recover, and the 
industry as a whole is lending support to the recovery effort.

* �Sales volume share estimates are based on Fields’ own 
internal research.
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manufacturers have resumed production and machine manufacturers have revised their supply 

chains to address shortages. As a result, there are signs that the supply of new products is stabiliz-

ing. We think that the business environment in which Fields operates will remain little changed in 

the foreseeable future.

In other words, we are striving to develop products which ensure that pachinko/pachislot becomes 

an entertainment-oriented business.

Fields is in a very advantageous position due to its status as a distributor and wholesaler that 

links pachinko/pachislot machine manufacturers with pachinko halls across the country. This allows 

us to obtain extensive qualitative and quantitative data on the overall market, and analyze that data 

to help guide new product planning and development. Our business model—to design products 

and contract out production, much like a “fabless” manufacturer—is completely unique in this 

business sector. That in itself is one of our biggest competitive strengths. We also have alliances with 

some of the industry’s top machine manufacturers, such as Sammy Corporation, SANKYO CO., LTD. 

and KYORAKU SANGYO, that allow Fields to develop the sort of entertainment-type machines that 

contribute most to invigorating the market, and release them in a timely manner.

Fields can offer customers added value in almost every aspect of the business from distribution 

to the operation of pachinko halls themselves, as well as information services and development 

support. Our sales force is constantly working to enhance their own knowledge of the industry and 

ability to propose solutions. The Company has distributed Apple iPads to each of its sales person-

nel, to serve as a sales planning tool, and ensure that they can provide the utmost in information 

and service quality. This facilitates their capability for supporting customers in innovative ways.

Planning—the creation of entertainment content—is another important area of Fields’ opera-

tions. This includes not only product planning and development of the story lines and characters 

used in the machines, but also the collection and development of intellectual property (IP), charac-

ters and concepts that will help attract new fans. In April 2011, the Company established a new 

Contents Division to help enhance the added value of game machines. This division will promote 

specialized scientific research as well as researching the elements needed to create appropriate 

characters for the game machines. To support these efforts, Fields is acquiring IP, licenses and 

copyrights, which can be used by all members of the Fields Group to enhance added value and 

help develop entertainment content with a broad appeal to the world at large.

The development phase of operations is an essential part of the business. In this phase we 

create the actual platform for entertainment content that is suitable for use in pachinko/pachislot 

machines. The Company has added two new subsidiaries to its Group and taken steps to 

strengthen ties to equipment manufacturers like Sammy, SANKYO and KYORAKU SANGYO, as 

well as to improve Fields’ own development capabilities. In April 2010, Fields acquired Digital 

Frontier Inc., one of the largest computer graphics production companies in Japan, and in January 

2011 we acquired MICROCABIN CORP., a developer of graphics software that has extensive expe-

rience in the graphics drivers used for the LCD displays of pachinko/pachislot machines. The 

Group’s initiatives in the three distribution, planning and development phases have begun produc-

ing results that should enhance the entertainment aspect of pachinko/pachislot machines in the 

near future, expand the scope of pachinko/pachislot fans, and contribute significantly to the further 

development of the industry.

Pachinko/Pachislot Fields of Operation

Fields of operation Fields Allied 
manufacturers

Market data 
collection and 

analysis
Sales Division

IP planning and 
development Contents 

DivisionProduct 
planning

Development Development 
Division

Sammy 
Corporation

SANKYO CO., 
LTD.

KYORAKU 
SANGYO

Manufacture/
assembly

Sales Sales Division

Allied Manufacturers

Partner 
manufacturers Fields’ sales brand

Start of 
alliance

Sammy 
Corporation

Rodeo Co., Ltd. 
(pachislot) 2000

SANKYO CO., 
LTD.

Bisty Co., Ltd. 
(pachinko/pachislot) 2003

KYORAKU 
SANGYO

In preparation 
(pachinko) 2008

Group Companies Supporting Game 
Machine Development

Name

Start of 
Group 

affiliation

Shin-Nichi Technology Co., Ltd. 2008

F Corporation 2009

Digital Frontier Inc. 2010

MICROCABIN CORP. 2011

Q:	W hat are Fields’ competitive strengths in the reliably profitable pachinko/pachislot market?

A:	Fields has developed a very unique business model which makes the Company 
very competitive. Based on this business model, and visible improvements to 
distribution, planning and development, we think that the potential for growth in 
pachinko/pachislot machines is at least as strong as those in any other sector of 
the entertainment business.

Fields Corporation   Annual Report 2011
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Tetsuya Shigematsu
Senior Managing Director
(Responsible for Group Business and Division Manager, 
Business Division)

P06–09
q	Position in the entertainment business

q	Performance evaluation for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011

q	Current condition of the pachinko/pachislot market and Fields’ 
accomplishments in the market

q	Impact of the Great East Japan Earthquake

q	Fields’ strengths in the pachinko/pachislot business

P10–12
q	Prospects for the domestic entertainment market

q	Successes achieved by Group businesses

q	Future plans for group operations

P13
q	Business plans and earnings expectations for the fiscal year 

ending March 31, 2012

q	Message for investors and shareholders
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At a time when there are growing uncertainties about both GDP and consumer spending in Japan, 

it would be difficult to achieve rapid growth based solely on domestic demand. In the medium to 

long term, Fields will have to look to overseas markets like Asia and North America, to achieve 

growth. Furthermore, overseas entertainment markets are already dominated by major conglomer-

ates, and the Japanese market may move in the same direction, in the not-too-distant future.

On the other hand, the use of technological advances in recent years has fostered the growth of 

many new entertainment businesses, particularly in sectors such as mobile media, smartphones 

and the effort to build infrastructure for such multi-function devices. Now is an ideal time to 

develop superior types of entertainment content and ways of delivering it. The Fields Group is 

trying to anticipate future trends and to establish itself as a central player in the Japanese enter-

tainment conglomerates of the future. Therefore, we are planning to act swiftly to build an enter-

tainment business that encompasses many different media types, from mobile and online services 

to games, movies and publications.

Fields has adopted the slogan: “Tackling New Challenges to Pave the Way to the Future,” to 

express its ambition to breathe new life into the Group and its business activities. Our media strat-

egy to develop profitable entertainment content still makes a very minor contribution compared 

with the pachinko/pachislot business. However, the Group is building relationships with major 

companies and creative artists in a variety of media segments to build a foundation for future 

success. The Company is particularly interested in the market for online entertainment, including 

mobile media. Mobile phone-based services that draw upon our pachinko/pachislot content—

known as “MOBASLO”—are expanding gradually. In addition, the Group is exploring and develop-

ing new services for other types of content, investing aggressively in measures to turn these ideas 

into practical applications, and launch numerous new services that can steadily attract 

subscribers.

Meanwhile, Fields has been developing cooperative ventures with leading companies outside 

the Group in order to acquire and develop entertainment content. In April 2010, the Company 

added two new subsidiaries to the Group: Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd., which holds the copy-

rights to the “Ultraman” series of action hero characters, among other high-quality IP, and Digital 

Frontier Inc., one of Japan’s leading computer graphics companies.

The Group is also moving into the online services business. Fields teamed up with NHN Japan 

Corporation, which operates “Hangame”—one of Japan’s leading game portal sites—to establish a 

joint venture company known as IP Bros. Incorporated. In the publishing field, we teamed up with 

Shogakukan Creative Inc. (a member of the Shogakukan Group) to establish another joint venture 

named HERO’S Inc. This JV affiliate will begin publishing monthly comic books aimed at young-

sters, in the autumn of 2011.

Q:	W hat are the prospects for the domestic entertainment business?

A:	Future prospects for the domestic business revolve around the impact of overseas-
style business and advances in technology. However, we think that in the medium 
to long term, Fields will have to begin looking at a more global market presence.

Q:	W hat successes have Group businesses achieved?

A:	The Group is steadily accumulating and promoting entertainment content, and 
thus building the foundation for a profitable content business.

Fields Corporation   Annual Report 2011
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The Group is making entertainment content and multi-use items the main pillars of its operation. 

We are adopting a business scheme which focuses on using cutting edge technology and creativity 

to develop value-added IP and entertainment content. Currently the Group is working aggressively 

to identify opportunities to generate revenue. For example, Fields is collaborating with copyright 

holders and providers of entertainment content to leverage its strengths in the pachinko/pachislot 

business, and plans to find ways to offer this through various types of media. In this way, the Com-

pany hopes to increase the opportunities to generate revenue from a particular entertainment 

product or piece of IP.

To establish a firm base for operations, Fields will continue to survey and research trends in 

how people spend their leisure time. Based on this research, we will try to anticipate trends in 

media and entertainment content, in order to develop products and services that move and thrill. 

These ongoing future development efforts, as well as cooperation with and acquisition of leading 

companies in the entertainment industry, will require continued investment, but Fields will con-

tinue its effort to maximize the impact of such investment, including in M&A and in collaboration 

with other companies, and to return the profits from these investments to our shareholders.

The experience that Fields gained in its relief efforts following the Great East Japan Earthquake 

have provided the Company with valuable lessons. Among other things, we have become keenly 

aware of the fact that people need more than just food, shelter and clothing in order to have a 

decent quality of life; opportunities for leisure and entertainment are also essential to daily life. We 

want to respond to this need, seeking ways to provide people with entertainment that enriches their 

lives and gives them joy. Thanks to the support and loyalty of all our stakeholders, the Fields Group 

can look forward to continued growth over the long term. I want to thank everyone for their contin-

ued support.

Q:	W hat are your future plans for Group operations?

A:	Fields wants to develop entertainment businesses that can provide customers with 
pleasure and quality to fill their leisure time.

Business Scheme

Media Mix

Content

Commercialization

Pachinko machine 
manufacturers

Pachislot machine 
manufacturers

Cutting-edge Creative Elements  
& Technology

[Digital Frontier]

High-quality IP

Paper (magazines/comics)

CD/DVD (sales/rental)

New mobile information devices

Video game consoles

Mobile phones

Movies

TV

Character goods

Live theater

[HERO’S] [Tsuburaya Productions]

Comics/books Games Sports, etc.Animation TV/DramasMovies

Advertisement planner

Game creator

Video creator

Copywriter

Video technology

TV writer/planner

Pachinko halls nationwide

Fans

Product 
planning

Sales 
planning

Sales 
consignment

Planning and 
development

Music (artists)
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In the early part of the fiscal year, there were concerns about the impact that the Great East Japan 

Earthquake would have on pachinko hall operations. In addition, interruptions in the supply of 

components forced many equipment manufacturers to delay production and shipment of 

pachinko/pachislot machines, and to adopt a cautious stance on the launch of new products. 

However, there is a comprehensive lineup available, including many game-oriented and 

entertainment-oriented products. Several major new titles are due to be released in this fiscal year, 

and we expect these to earn a favorable reception from fans. Meanwhile, the Group is steadily 

strengthening its IP strategy in order to support growth over the medium and long term. We expect 

this to elevate earnings levels for the Group as a whole.

Based on these assumptions, we expect consolidated net sales to decline by 3.5% year on 

year, to ¥100.0 billion, but we anticipate a 6.6% increase in operating income, to ¥14.0 billion, a 

2.3% rise in ordinary income, to ¥14.0 billion, and a 6.4% year on year increase in net income, to 

¥8.0 billion. The business environment has changed considerably compared with the outlook 

when Fields unveiled its current medium-term business plan. However, we still will do our utmost 

to reach the medium-term earnings target of ¥17.0 billion in operating income for the year ending 

March 31, 2012 (the target figure in our current medium-term business plan).

The Fields Group does not want to become so focused on short-term goals that we miss out on 

opportunities for growth. We have adopted medium- to long-term assumptions and intend to 

pursue our strategy while monitoring the situation to ensure that we don’t lose sight of our growth 

opportunities. In order to fulfill our strategy, it is essential that we make investments in the future, 

to build ties to partner companies and promote research and development. However, we intend to 

balance this with a sound financial strategy, to ensure that we progress smoothly.

Our basic stance on capital is to provide shareholders with a steady dividend flow, based on 

profit performance, and increase that return over the longer term in accordance with the 

Company’s growth. In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, we paid a dividend of ¥5,000 per 

share, increasing the dividend by ¥500 year on year (this corresponds to a consolidated dividend 

payout ratio of 22.1%). In the year ending March 31, 2012, we also intend to pay dividends of 

¥5,000 per share (a consolidated payout ratio of 20.8% based on our profit forecasts). We have 

adopted this stance not because we are fully satisfied with the dividend amount, but because it 

is in line with our overall strategy of pursuing growth through new business ventures, which we 

believe will provide greater success in the longer term, and allow shareholders to benefit from 

future profit distributions.

The Fields Group brings together various companies that are committed to creating “The Great-

est Leisure for All People.” We want to provide entertainment that thrills and moves people; if it is 

something that has been lost, we will recreate it, and if it is something that does not yet exist, we 

will create it.

We ask for the continued support of the Fields Group from our shareholders, investors and all 

other stakeholders as we strive to underpin happiness in society.

P06–09
q	Position in the entertainment business

q	Performance evaluation for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011

q	Current condition of the pachinko/pachislot market and Fields’ 
accomplishments in the market

q	Impact of the Great East Japan Earthquake

q	Fields’ strengths in the pachinko/pachislot business

P10–12
q	Prospects for the domestic entertainment market

q	Successes achieved by Group businesses

q	Future plans for group operations

P13
q	Business plans and earnings expectations for the fiscal year 

ending March 31, 2012

q	Message for investors and shareholders

(Yen)

Dividends per Share

 Year-end   Interim
(forecast)

Commemorative 
dividend 500

Dividend increase 
500

Q:	W hat are your business plans and earnings expectations for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2012?

A:	We aim to continue expanding operations, and anticipate record high earnings results.

Q:	D o you have any other message for investors and shareholders?

A:	We want to provide entertainment that thrills and moves people; if it is something 
that has been lost, we will recreate it, and if it is something that does not yet 
exist, we will create it.
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Feature: The Great East Japan Earthquake – Impact and Recovery

March 11, 2011

On March 11, 2011, an earthquake measuring 9.0 in magnitude struck a large expanse of eastern Japan.
The disaster left more than 20,000 people dead or missing in the hardest hit areas. It also precipitated the largest accident at a nuclear 
power plant in Japanese history and a severe shortage in electricity.
Pachinko halls were affected in the disaster, as were electronic component factories supplying gaming machine makers that came 
to a halt.
Despite these hardships, we put our faith in tomorrow and devoted ourselves to the recovery effort.

14
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Damage  Status

Aomori Prefecture

l 17 halls

Miyagi Prefecture

l 25 halls
l 183 halls

Fukushima Prefecture

l At least 5 halls
l At least 160 halls

Timeline of the Great East Japan Earthquake	 March 11, 2011

2:46 P.M.:	G reat East Japan Earthquake with epicenter off Japan’s northeastern 
Pacific coast (Tohoku region)

	 l Maximum seismic intensity of 7
	 l Magnitude of 9.0
2:49 P.M.:	 Japan Meteorological Agency issues a major tsunami alert
	 l Maximum height of 11.8 m (estimated)
3:00 P.M.:	 Tsunami arrives at the Fukushima Daiichi Nuclear Power Station
	 l �Power supply lost due to direct impact of tsunami (triggers 

nuclear accident)
7:03 P.M.:	G overnment declares a nuclear power state of emergency
	 l �Residents near the Fukushima Daiichi Nuclear Power 

Station instructed to evacuate

Human Toll of the Disaster
(As of September 1, 2011, announced by National Police Agency)

Confirmed dead 15,757 people

Injured 5,927 people

Missing 4,382 people

Damage to Pachinko Halls
(As of April 15, 2011, announced by Zennichiyuren)

Chiba Prefecture

l 108 halls

Tochigi Prefecture

l 7 halls
l 42 halls

Ibaraki Prefecture

l 106 halls

Iwate Prefecture

l 15 halls
l 54 halls

l Destroyed  l Partially destroyed, other

* Fukushima Kenyuren announced that the number of halls 

that remain closed was 32 as of the end of June 2011.

Photo taken inside a damaged pachinko hall (Miyagi Prefecture)

Damage to Electronic Component Manufacturers

Damage Status Postscript

Operations stop at top semiconductor supplier 
in Japan

Production partly 
resumed in June

Damage to world’s top silicon wafer manufac-
turing company

Production partly 
resumed in April

Complete operational shutdown at security 
chip manufacturing company

Phased resumption of 
operations from June

Fields Corporation   Annual Report 2011
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The Great East Japan Earthquake caused significant damage 
to the power generation facilities of the Fukushima Daiichi 
and Daini Nuclear Power Stations. On March 13, Japan’s 
Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry issued a request to 
the country’s industrial sector to curb power usage. In parallel, 
The Tokyo Electric Power Company, Incorporated (TEPCO) 
announced that it would institute rolling blackouts in its ser-
vice area from March 14, 2011, in response to the curtailed 
supply and tightened demand for electric power.

On March 15, 2011, representatives from pachinko hall groups held 
a meeting that culminated in a request to pachinko hall proprietors 
throughout Japan to comply with seven provisions, including for 
cooperation in conserving electricity.
	I n line with this request, pachinko halls nationwide initiated the 
full-day switch off of neon signs, outdoor signboards and other light-
ing. Pachinko halls within the service areas of TEPCO and Tohoku 
Electric Power Co., Inc., meanwhile, decisively opted to shorten hours 
of operation despite the expected negative impact on hall revenues.

Police, firefighters, Self-Defense Forces and Japan Coast 
Guard members from across the country are engaged in an 
array of activities in the region hardest hit by the disaster, 
including leading people to safety, rescue, the search for miss-
ing persons, responding to the nuclear power accident, various 
measures to secure transportation, and ensuring safety and 
security. The police in particular dispatched around 380,000 
officers (as of June 20, 2011), including Interprefectural 
Emergency Units, to the Iwate, Miyagi and Fukushima 
Prefectural Police from all over Japan.

Pachinko halls in the disaster-impacted region, and in areas sub-
ject to rolling power outages, refrained from introducing new 
gaming machines, requiring written police notification and 
approval, in compliance with the provisions the pachinko hall 
groups had instituted. Manufacturers of gaming machines were 
also asked to postpone the sale of their products.
	A t the same time, gaming machine manufacturers and sales 
companies have, in addition to honoring this request, chosen to join 
together to postpone machine sales for a set period of time, espe-
cially in light of the volume of clerical and procedural work that 
accompany the introduction of new gaming machines for the police 
in each prefecture.

For Reference: Provisions the Pachinko Hall Groups Agreed to on March 15, 2011
1.	 Institute the full-day switch off of external lighting (including neon and outdoor sign-

boards) at pachinko halls nationwide until the end of March 2011.
2.	 Scale back advertising and promotions (including TV and radio ads, newspaper inserts, 

and emails) for the time being at pachinko halls nationwide.
3.	 Request that pachinko halls in the service areas of Tohoku Electric Power and TEPCO 

shorten hours of operation for the time being. Explore possible response actions for halls 
in other power company service areas as well.

4.	 Request agreement and compliance on behalf of the five major pachinko hall groups for 
any pachinko hall failing to comply with the above three items.

5.	 In the disaster-affected region and regions subject to rolling power outages, voluntarily 
refrain from actions that require police notification and approval, such as the introduction 
of new machines, for the time being. In parallel, request that manufacturers postpone the 
release of any new units.

6.	 Actively participate in blood donation drives.
7.	 Work together as the pachinko/pachislot industry to raise funds for donation to the 

disaster-affected region.

*� �On April 25, the pachinko hall groups revised the provisions agreed to above, including 
retraction of the request to shorten hours of operation, based on improved estimates of 
the supply-demand balance for electricity in the TEPCO service area.

For Reference: Year-on-Year Comparison of Pachinko Hall Utilization 
for February to July (Based on research by Fields)

l Average Daily Gaming Machine Utilization in the Pachinko Market

Industry Action After the Disaster    –Social Contribution by the Pachinko/Pachislot Industry–

1

24,000

22,000

20,000

18,000

16,000
Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul.

Decline in new machines

Great East Japan Earthquake Golden Week Rolling closures(Balls)

 2010   2011   2011 avg.
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On May 13, Japan’s Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry 
asked companies and households in the service areas of Tohoku 
Electric Power and TEPCO to uniformly reduce their power 
consumption by 15%. The timeframe for this reduction was 
July 1 to September 22, 2011 within the TEPCO service area, 
and July 1 to September 9, 2011 within the Tohoku Electric 
Power service area. These periods were projected to oversee the 
tightest conditions for the supply and demand of electric power.

In order to comply with the request to reduce power usage, the 
pachinko hall groups decided to enact rolling closures on three 
occasions per month for halls located in the TEPCO service area, and 
on two occasions per month for halls within the Tohoku Electric 
Power service area. The period for both rolling closures was set from 
July 1 to September 30, 2011, with power usage reduction targets for 
the TEPCO service area set at 25% or more, and reduction targets 
for the Tohoku Electric Power service area set at 20% or more.
	I n parallel, gaming machine manufacturers and sales compa-
nies also moved on their own initiative to put energy-saving mea-
sures in place. In advance of the broader industry, Fields, based on 
a voluntary action plan, sought to cut its own power usage by 25% 
or more through steady enactment of programs related to use of 
air conditioning, facilities, and office equipment, compliance with 
Japan’s “Cool Biz” energy-saving program for businesses, and 
awareness-raising among employees.

(See page 30, “Examples of Activities from April 2010 through August 2011,” for more details 
on energy-saving measures by Fields.)

l Average Daily Gaming Machine Utilization in the Pachislot Market

In the six months since the Great East Japan Earthquake, the pachinko/pachislot industry has worked together with society in 
promoting a range of initiatives as Japan moves to get back on track in the wake of the disaster. Today, manufacturers of 
materials and components damaged by the earthquake and tsunami are steadily restarting production, with production lines 
returning to levels seen prior to March 11. In the hardest-hit region, the resumption of pachinko hall operations has provided 
not only a place for entertainment, but community spaces where lots of people have begun to gather. In addition, the lacklus-
ter average daily gaming machine utilization that had plagued the entire market immediately following the disaster recovered 
during the Golden Week holidays in May and from June, and is set to surpass previous-year levels. This is the power of 
pachinko—one of Japan’s most popular forms of entertainment.

* �Average daily gaming machine utilization refers to the number of single balls (for pachinko) or medal tokens (for pachislot) inserted into each individual gaming machine. A pachinko 
machine usually receives approximately 65,000 balls and a pachislot machine roughly 24,000 medal tokens during a typical day in operation.

1  In the aftermath of the disaster, pachinko halls in 
Tokyo announced shorter hours of operation.

(May 2011 edition of Green Belt)

2  This pachinko hall that resumed operations in the 
disaster zone has become a gathering place for 
many in the community.

(Asahi Shimbun (morning edition) dated July 20, 2011)

“Eco Hall Declaration”  
campaign poster

2

12,000

10,000

8,000

Great East Japan Earthquake Golden Week Rolling closures(Medal tokens)
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Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul.
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Support for  
Recovery

The Japanese government has established an auxiliary budget 
of roughly ¥6 trillion to cope with restoration and recovery 
costs, which are estimated to surpass ¥20 trillion. The 
Japanese Red Cross Society and the Central Community Chest 
of Japan, meanwhile, have collected a total of over ¥300 billion 
in donations from individuals and companies across Japan.

On March 16, 2011, the Pachinko/Pachislot Production 21st 
Century Association, composed of 14 groups from the pachinko/
pachislot industry, announced a policy that would see ¥1 billion in 
donations provided by pachinko hall groups and another ¥1 billion 
from gaming machine-related groups. As of June 2011, the best 
estimates are that a total of ¥4.4 billion in donations have been 
given from across the entire industry.
	A s individual companies, major gaming machine manufacturers 
and pachinko halls alike have made donations on the scale of sev-
eral hundred million yen each to the Japanese Red Cross Society 
and the Central Community Chest of Japan.
	 The Ultraman Foundation, meanwhile, has provided support for 
physical and psychological wellbeing as well as donations aimed at putting 
contributions to the foundation to use in helping to meet the needs 
of children in the three prefectures of Miyagi, Fukushima, and Iwate.

The Great East Japan Earthquake had a tremendous impact on the Japanese economy. The cost of direct damage to facilities, 
equipment, roads and other infrastructure is estimated at between ¥16 trillion and ¥25 trillion, with the time required for full 
restoration and recovery now being measured in decades.
	H owever, Japanese society is moving steadily and resolutely to rise above this unprecedented crisis. At the same 
time, the pachinko/pachislot industry, as part of the entertainment industry that enriches society, has embarked on a 
recovery of its own.

On March 14, 2011, on the third day after disaster struck, 
the shortage in food and water became critical with the evac-
uees swelling to more than 550,000 people. Worse, emer-
gency relief supplies from across the country were failing to 
reach victims due to mayhem in distribution functions caused 
by the disaster.

Recognizing that relief supplies were not arriving, pachinko halls in 
the disaster zones sprang into action immediately after the earth-
quake and tsunami to begin securing supplies for opening emergency 
outdoor kitchens and handing out drinking water at evacuation cen-
ters, and even opening halls to serve as evacuation sites.
	I n this context, the Fields Group established the Ultraman 
Foundation to provide ongoing support to the children who will 
usher in a new future, and began making support visits to the 
affected areas. In a visit to Miyagi Prefecture immediately after the 
disaster, the foundation carried out activities to support both physi-
cal and psychological wellbeing, including not only the provision of 
relief supplies and the outdoor preparation of 8,800 meals, but also 
the staging of “Ultra Hero” shows.

3

7

4

6

3  Gaming machine-related groups 
held several events in Ishinomaki 
City, Miyagi Prefecture, including 
an outdoor emergency kitchen to 
hand out food.

4  Gaming machine-related groups 
installed shipping containers 
retrofitted as shower stalls at 
evacuation centers to help 
survivors ease stress and recuper-
ate physically from their ordeal.

6  The Ultraman Foundation opened 
an outdoor emergency kitchen to 
hand out food in Kesennuma City, 
Miyagi Prefecture. Fields employees 
were also on hand as volunteers.

7  Also in Kesennuma City, the 
Ultraman Foundation held “Ultra 
Hero” shows to boost the morale 
of local children.

5  The Fields Group established the 
Ultraman Foundation immediately 
after the disaster to provide sup-
port to the most affected region.

(See page 30, “Examples of Activities from April 2010 through August 2011,” and the website (http://www.ultraman-kikin.jp/), for more details on activities of the Ultraman Foundation.)
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Our individual actions and the initiatives we have taken may 
seem small.

Nevertheless, we can say that our very best has gone into  
everything done at the time.

As we look down the long road to recovery, the two things that 
the pachinko industry can unequivocally do are to help put 
smiles back on people’s faces, and to help people enjoy their 
time spent through entertainment.

In helping to realize an even better society after recovery, 
Fields pledges to fulfill its responsibilities as a standard bearer 
in Japan’s entertainment industry.

Fields Initiatives
March 11: Safety of all employees confirmed

l	 Activation of system to confirm whereabouts, with safety of all employees 
confirmed the day of the disaster

March 13: Crisis management committee convened
l	 Assessment of extent of damage and discussion of response going forward

Established Disaster Countermeasures Headquarters
l	 Discussion of options for supporting affected employees and the affected region 

(establishment of Ultraman Foundation)
l	 Provisioned consolation payments immediately to affected employees

March 16: First shipment of relief supplies arrives at Sendai Branch (Miyagi Prefecture)
l	 Relief supplies delivered with the cooperation of employees from all over Japan 

and a freight company based in Nagoya

March 17: First shipment of relief supplies arrives at Koriyama Branch (Fukushima 
Prefecture)
l	 Employees from the head office deliver relief material in person

March 18: First shipment of relief supplies arrives at Tsukuba Branch (Ibaraki Prefecture)
l	 Relief supplies delivered with cooperation of a freight company

March 23: Visit by chairman to the Sendai Branch to lend encouragement
l	 Meals were cooked in the branch for handout and the chairman gave 

employees a pep talk toward resuming operations

March 30: Visit by president to the Tsukuba Branch to lend encouragement
l	 Brought relief supplies with him and encouraged employees who had resumed 

business operations

Early April Start of energy-saving initiatives
l	 Formulated voluntary action plans, with aim of reducing total electricity usage by 

25% or more

April 10: Relief visit to Ishinomaki City, Minamisanriku Town and Kesennuma City in 
Miyagi Prefecture (for participation in Ultraman Foundation activities)
l	 Employees from the head office and Sendai Branch participate in the activities 

as volunteers

May 29: Relief visit to Asahi City, Chiba Prefecture (for participation in Ultraman 
Foundation activities)
l	 Employees from the head office participate in the activities as volunteers

June 1: Announcement of energy-saving initiatives
l	 Put voluntary action plans into effect and announced initiatives for cutting total 

energy usage by over 25%

July 10: Relief visit to Koriyama City, Fukushima Prefecture (for participation in 
Ultraman Foundation activities)
l	 Employees from the head office and Koriyama Branch participate in the 

activities as volunteers

August 5: Relief visit to Ishinomaki City, Miyagi Prefecture (for participation in Ultraman 
Foundation activities)
l	 Employees from the head office participate in the activities as volunteers

September 17: Relief visit to Miyako City, Iwate Prefecture (for participation in Ultraman 
Foundation activities)
l	 Employees from the head office participate in the activities as volunteers

(%)

Rate of Reduction in Total Power Usage by Fields (Year on year)
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Pachinko/pachislot Business

Group Business

Pachinko/Pachislot (PS) Field
In this core business, Fields is involved in the planning, development and sale of pachinko/

pachislot machines.

By leveraging high-value-added content to promote the planning and development of 

machines in alliance with Sammy Corporation, SANKYO CO. LTD., KYORAKU SANGYO, and 

other major manufacturers, Fields continues to offer machines with high gaming and entertain-

ment value that more people can enjoy.

Mobile Field
In the online services field, which also includes the area of mobile content, Fields offers services 

for PCs and mobile devices.

In addition to services that take advantage of pachinko/pachislot-related content, Fields in 

recent years has continued to see steady growth of new services that leverage other content as a 

second growth driver.

Sports Entertainment Field
In addition to athlete management, Fields in this business is developing its Total Workout sports 

gym brand.

* �Effective August 23, 2011, Japan Sports Marketing Inc., a core subsidiary of the Company in the sports entertain-
ment field, was resolved to be liquidated and reorganized (see the corporate website for details).

Other Field
This business field encompasses the acquisition, ownership and creation by Fields of promising 

intellectual property (IP), as well as the creation of high-valued-added content through the com-

bination of cutting-edge creative elements and technology.

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, the Fields Group welcomed several influential 

companies, including Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd., HERO’S Inc., and Digital Frontier Inc.

(%)

Sales Composition

 Pachinko/Pachislot Field
 Mobile Field

 Sports Entertainment Field
 Other Field

Review of Operations At A GLANCE

03/09

¥61,041
million

91.3 92.8

5.9

2.6 2.7

2.0
2.1

0.90.2 3.6

¥67,237
million

¥104,119
mill ion

03/10

03/11

90.3

5.6

CR Evangelion—Evangelical 
of the beginnings

©khara, ©Bisty

Fields Mobile
©khara, ©Bisty

Ultraman Saga 

©2011 Ultraman Saga 
Production Committee

HERO’S Monthly 

©HERO’S

Total Workout

Ore no Sora—Spirit of 
Young Justice

©Motomiya Hiroshi/SHUEISHA/
FIELDS
©Sammy ©RODEO

Nanapachi
©GAINAX-khara / Project EVA. 
©Bisty

TEKKEN BLOOD  
VENGEANCE

©2011 NAMCO BANDAI  
Games Inc.
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Pachinko/Pachislot Business

Market Trends and Outlook
In the pachinko/pachislot market, the average number of machines installed per hall grew 2.5% 

year on year to 365, lifting the overall number of machines installed by 1.0% to 4.55 million. 

This growth reflected growth in the overall number of machines installed market-wide for the first 

time in four years, against the backdrop of recovery undertones in the pachislot market and a 

shift to larger pachinko halls.

Utilization rates for pachinko/pachislot machines moved higher year on year, lifted by the release 

of several pachislot machines in response to customer needs. Similarly, in pachinko machines, after 

a period of momentary weakness caused by an oversupply of machines considered problematic for 

their high gambling appeal, the market has turned to recovery with the steady release of so-called 

“middle type” machines that downplay this aspect. Gross profit on gaming machines is also growing 

firmly, as the market begins to return to a semblance of its earlier performance.

The market for gaming machines has seen popularity of pachislot machines grow more con-

centrated around specific machine varieties, bringing steady growth in the number of machines 

sold. In pachinko machines, on the other hand, a trend toward decline emerged in the number 

of machines sold with stagnation in the replacement of older machines with new ones, which is 

critical to attracting customers. The main reasons for this were a temporary decline in utilization 

rates for pachinko machines and expansion in the number of pachinko halls offering low price 

rental ball operation, who tend to have a high demand for used machines. Nevertheless, 

pachinko machines are experiencing robust sales of attractive models from major pachinko 

machine series and “middle type” models.

According to market statistics at the end of 2010, although the playing population declined 

2.9% to 16.7 million people, this figure has been on a projected long-term growth trajectory since 

2007. Similarly, while the market scale of total fees collected from rental ball operations fell 8.0% 

year on year to ¥19.3 trillion, the effect on actual gross profit has been minimal. This suggests 

that the penetration of pachinko halls offering low price rental ball operation as a way for game 

players to restrain their initial investment will run its course and bottom out in the near future.

In this way, the pachinko/pachislot market is becoming sounder and moving toward revitaliza-

tion with the release of gaming machines that respond to customer needs without reliance on high 

gambling appeal. Going forward, along with attracting existing customers with machines defined by 

rich gaming and entertainment value, this approach is also likely to draw in new customers.

In the pachinko/pachislot business, we strove to improve on our share of machines sold with the launch of machines 
created with even greater attention to rich game and entertainment value.

(Millions of yen) (Thousand units)

Pachinko/Pachislot (PS) Field Number of Pachinko/pachislot Machines 
Sold by Alliance Partners

	 Net sales
	 Operating income

	 Pachinko machines
	 Pachislot machines

	 Sammy Group	   SANKYO Group	   Olympia
	 Enterrise	   Other manufacturers

(Thousand units)

Number of Pachinko/pachislot Machines Sold

Source: �“2011 White Paper on Leisure,” published by 
Japan Productivity Center

(Trillions of yen)

(Thousand people)

Scale of the Pachinko/pachislot Market

Player Population

The market has contracted due to regulatory 
revisions and an increase in pachinko halls 
offering low price rental ball operation.
*The effect on earnings has been negligible.
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Review of Results for the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2011
The Pachinko/Pachislot (PS) Field recorded net sales of ¥94,115 million, a year-on-year increase 

of 50.9%, and operating income of ¥12,866 million, up 58.2%.

In the core operation in this field—the sale of pachinko/pachislot machines—we sought to 

increase our share of the number of pachinko/pachislot machines sold by releasing machines 

created with an emphasis on outstanding entertainment value.

In the sale of pachislot machines, the strong reception received by machines Onimusha: 

Dawn of Dreams and Neon Genesis Evangelion—Die Spur der SEELE, resulted in strong growth 

in additional orders during the fiscal year under review. A total of six machines were released 

including Ore no Sora—Spirit of Young Justice, part of a series to commemorate Rodeo’s 10th 

anniversary, and MOBASLO Evangelion—for your own wish, equipped with a “MOBASLO” 

gaming function that offers new gaming services. As a result, the Company sold a total of 

217,659 pachislot machines, an increase of 98,513 from the previous fiscal year. From this 

result, the Company’s share of the number of pachislot machines sold was 24.5%, giving it the 

top share of the industry for the second consecutive year (based on research by Fields).

Although the delivery date for MOBASLO Evangelion—for your own wish, released in late 

March 2011, was pushed back to the next fiscal year at the request of certain customers due to 

the impact of the Great East Japan Earthquake, sales remained robust through the third quarter 

of the year, resulting in only a limited impact on full-year business performance.

In the sale of pachinko machines, the Company launched the sale of four machines including 

CR Evangelion—Evangelical of the beginnings, which became a major hit. Selling a total of 

262,614 units, or 68,120 less than in the previous fiscal year. The Company’s share of the 

number of pachinko machines sold was 9.1%, roughly on par with the previous-year figure 

(based on research by Fields). Please refer to page 41 regarding income structure for Pachinko/

pachislot business.

Product Releases
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, we took steps to strengthen our alliance with 

leading manufacturers SANKYO CO., LTD. and Sammy Corporation, as we sought to expand 

sales of the Bisty and Rodeo brands. We also embarked on the full-scale sale of machines from 

Enterrise Co., Ltd., an up-and-coming manufacturer that expectations are building around.

Information on sales by release title is as follows.

Pachislot machines Brand Release Date Number of machines sold 
throughout the year

Cumulative number of 
machines sold

Neon Genesis Evangelion—Die Spur der SEELE Bisty Co., Ltd. March 2010 9,000 units 84,000 units

Onimusha: Dawn of Dreams Rodeo Co., Ltd. March 2010 63,000 units 90,000 units

Gamera Rodeo Co., Ltd. June 2010 13,000 units 13,000 units

Magical Shopping Arcade Abenobashi Bisty Co., Ltd. August 2010 – –

Ore no Sora—Spirit of Young Justice Rodeo Co., Ltd. December 2010 38,000 units 38,000 units

Gravion Rodeo Co., Ltd. January 2011 – –

Sengoku BASARA 2 Enterrise Co., Ltd. February 2011 16,000 units 16,000 units

MOBASLO Evangelion—for your own wish Bisty Co., Ltd. March 2011 55,000 units 78,000 units

Pachinko machines Brand Release Date Number of machines sold 
throughout the year

Cumulative number of 
machines sold

CR Evangelion—Evangelical of the beginnings Bisty Co., Ltd. June 2010 205,000 units 205,000 units

CR Shimizu no Jirocho Light ver. Bisty Co., Ltd. August 2010 – –

CR Evangelion—Evangelical of the beginnings—Light ver. Bisty Co., Ltd. November 2010 – –

CR Kung Fu Panda Bisty Co., Ltd. February 2011 11,000 units 11,000 units

* Number of units sold not disclosed for titles with cumulative sales of under 10,000 units.

t	Rodeo

Onimusha: Dawn of Dreams

©CAPCOM CO., LTD. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED
©Sammy
©RODEO

Onimusha is a registered trademark of  
CAPCOM CO., LTD.

t	Bisty

MOBASLO Evangelion—

for your own wish

©khara
©GAINAX and khara/Project Eva.
©Bisty

t	Rodeo

Ore no Sora—
Spirit of Young Justice

©Hiroshi Motomiya/SHUEISHA/FIELDS
©Sammy
©RODEO

t	Bisty

CR Evangelion—
Evangelical of the beginnings

©khara
©Bisty
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Policies Going Forward
In the pachinko/pachislot business we are engaged in basic research that will help to strengthen 

our planning and development capabilities. The ultimate goal of these efforts is to create products 

using content that can be enjoyed by as many people as possible. In our research we seek to tap 

the deeper levels of the Japanese psyche as the well-spring of popular culture, and we are focus-

ing in particular on “Heroes,” which have an extremely powerful affinity to pachinko/pachislot. We 

see this research as an essential part of creating high-value-added products. In this way we are 

conducting high-quality planning that compares favorably with other forms of entertainment.

As part of our efforts toward development of image software, we made Digital Frontier Inc. a 

consolidated subsidiary in April 2010, followed by MICROCABIN CORP. in January 2011. Digital 

Frontier Inc. is one of Japan’s major computer graphics production companies, and MICROCABIN 

CORP. has core strengths in developing image software for the LCDs used in pachinko/pachislot 

machines. In making these operations a part of the Fields Group, we aim to create pachinko/

pachislot machines with a superior level of development and even higher entertainment value.

Meanwhile, in our sales strategy, we envisage some impact on pachinko halls from the Great 

East Japan Earthquake and delays in production and shipping at some pachinko/pachislot 

machine manufacturers due to lack of components. In light of these factors we will carefully 

examine the best timing for launching new products, and take a flexible approach.

For our product lineup in the fiscal year ending March 31, 2012, we have worked with 

affiliated manufacturers since immediately after the earthquake to devise ways to secure com-

ponents and meet other challenges. As a result, we are able to launch several new products 

within the fiscal year. Two popular machines that we have launched already, the pachinko 

machine CR The story of ayumi hamasaki—introduction and the pachislot machine, Kaze no 

Youjinbou—Memory of Butterflies, have been well received by the market. We will continue our 

efforts to increase their share of unit sales.

Pachinko/pachislot Business Initiatives

t	Bisty

CR The story of 
ayumi hamasaki—introduction

©avex management inc.
©avex entertainment inc.
©Bisty

t	Rodeo

Kaze no Youjinbou—
Memory of Butterflies

©Kurowsawa Production/Sammy Corporation, 
DENTSU Inc., Pierrot Co., Ltd., Nippon 
Television Network Corporation
©sammy
©RODEO

Content survey, 
research, and 
acquisition period

Product planning 
period

Development 
period

Application/testing 
period

Sales/order-taking 
period

Manufacturing/
distribution 
period

Shipment 
period

s Content survey, research, and acquisition period
Survey and research appropriate content for pachinko/pachislot machine; and acquire, hold, and create IP—the source of content.

s Product planning period
Detailed product planning covering the overall concept of a machine and the storyline, as well as LCD presenta-
tion images and case design.

s Development period
Cooperate with partner manufacturer to develop LCD images and operation program, etc.

s Application/testing period
Manufacturer requests formal testing at the designated institution 
(SECTA). After passing testing, the manufacturer files a notifica-
tion with the Public Safety Commission.

s Sales/order-taking period
Conduct proposal-type sales activities at pachinko halls throughout Japan, using 
strengths as a major distributor.

s Manufacturing/distribution period
After receiving orders, the machines are manufactured at the manufacturer’s factory. At the same 
time, pachinko halls file a machine replacement application with the Public Safety Commission.

s Shipment period
The newly-made machines are delivered to the pachinko/pachislot halls by sales personnel. Then, after inspection 
by the police, the new machines are ready to provide enjoyment for everyone.

 Fields   Affiliated manufacturer/pachinko halls

s The lead time for taking a gaming machine from contents survey, research and acquisition to delivery is typically 2 to 3 years.
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Group Business

Market Trends and Outlook
Within the entertainment market, markets based on new technologies are thriving. Data from the 

end of 2010 show that the entertainment market, excluding pachinko/pachislot, had grown 0.4% 

year on year to ¥48.5 trillion. Within this, the mobile and PC field continues to develop. The 

mobile field, in particular, has seen the full scale uptake of smartphones, supported by acceler-

ated Internet communication speeds and upgrades to networks providing Internet access. More-

over, in the video field, the ratio of cinemas in Japan equipped with 3D movie equipment has 

greatly expanded; while in the game field, major manufacturers have launched video game 

consoles that use 3D technology. Through these and other developments, the industry is making 

an all-out effort to win new customers.

These developments in infrastructure have brought major changes to the content market, 

which Fields has positioned at the core of its strategy for building corporate competitive capabil-

ity. In 2010, the digital content market grew to account for around half of the overall content 

market, and we saw demand grow stronger for versatile content suitable for use in various enter-

tainment fields.

We believe the overall entertainment market will continue to be activated by improved infra-

structure using new technology, and premium content that creates new value. Business opportu-

nities in the entertainment market are expected to steadily increase.

In the Group Business we have positioned multi-purpose use of IP at the core of our strategy for building our competi-
tive strength as a corporation. Accordingly, we promote a diverse content business, harnessing synergies from multiple 
use of content across a wide range of entertainment fields.

(Millions of yen)(Millions of yen) (Millions of yen)

Sports Entertainment FieldMobile Field Other Field

	 Net sales
	 Operating income (loss)

	 Net sales
	 Operating income

	 Net sales
	 Operating income (loss)

(Trillions of yen)

(Trillions of yen)

Scale of the Entertainment Market 
(Excluding pachinko/pachislot)

Scale of the Digital Content Market

Source: �“2011 White Paper on Leisure,” published by 
Japan Productivity Center

	 Content market
	 Digital content market within content market

Source: �“Digital Content White Paper 2011,” published 
by Digital Content Association of Japan
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Review of Results for the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2011

Mobile Field
The Mobile Field recorded net sales of ¥2,032 million, a year-on-year increase of 11.6%, and 

operating income of ¥236 million, down 39.9%.

In the Mobile Field, Fields tapped into its strength in pachinko/pachislot related content, 

using it to enhance its online services, including for mobile devices, with the goal of increasing 

paying members of our mobile content platform “Fields Mobile.” In addition, we actively invested 

in developing new services as a channel for using our content in other fields as well. “Fields 

Mobile” performed well on synergy with pachinko/pachislot machine sales. Moreover, our new 

Sha-Me-Ji mobile content service which aims to create a new communication culture has grown 

faster than initially expected. We also stepped up our response to the rapidly growing market for 

next-generation mobile terminals such as smartphones, including distributing a pachislot 

machine simulator app. In other moves to promote media crossover between the Pachinko/

Pachislot (PS) Field and the Mobile Field we launched the MOBASLO service which links to 

MOBASLO Evangelion—for your own wish and Pspace, a virtual online pachinko/pachislot hall.

In December 2010, Fields established IP Bros. Incorporated as a joint venture with NHN 

Japan Corporation, the operator of online game portal site “Hangame.” IP Bros. Incorporated is 

working to build a framework for supplying IP held by the Fields Group and partner companies to 

diverse platforms.

Sports Entertainment Field
The Sports Entertainment Field recorded net sales of ¥2,171 million, a year-on-year decrease of 

10.1%, and an operating loss of ¥290 million, compared with an operating loss of ¥324 million 

in the previous fiscal year.

In this field we continued our efforts to improve the management of our sports related busi-

nesses. Japan Sports Marketing Inc. initiated a full scale revision of its athlete management 

business in light of significant changes in the market environment. In the sports gym business 

Fields provided professional services for professional athletes, and high-value-added services for 

health-conscious people under the “Total Workout” brand. We worked to acquire members by 

appealing to the high quality of our services. We also continued to build programs to dovetail 

with the leisure needs of the wider public.

s	Pachinko/pachislot-related Content

s	New Entertainment Content

s	Total Workout

Fields Mobile

Sha-Me-Ji

©khara
©Bisty

©GAINAX-khara / Project EVA.
©Bisty

Nanapachi

Nikokupon
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Other Field
The Other Field recorded net sales of ¥5,881 million, a year-on-year increase of 849.7%, and 

operating income of ¥315 million, compared with an operating loss of ¥70 million in the previous 

fiscal year.

In this field we have welcomed Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd. and Digital Frontier Inc. into 

the Group. Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd. holds the high-quality IP rights to the “Ultraman 

Series,” while Digital Frontier Inc. is one of Japan’s leading computer graphics (CG) production 

companies. We have been working to develop new businesses with these two companies to 

expand the Group’s operations. In other parts of the Other Field, we have teamed up with 

Shogakukan Creative Inc. to jointly establish a publishing company called HERO’S Inc. Here, 

preparations are under way for producing a monthly comic magazine, among other activities 

aimed at creating a strong foundation for development and creation of high-quality IP, which 

appears to be in decline. Moreover, at Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd., we are promoting vari-

ous initiatives aimed at activating our IP, including new movies and plans for an Ultraman Series 

45th Anniversary. For its part, Digital Frontier Inc. has been expanding its business by making 

use of its high level visual effects (VFX) technologies, in addition to producing CG for video 

games and pachinko/pachislot machines. For example, Digital Frontier Inc. produced VFX for 

the movie “GANTZ,” which debuted in January 2011. Lucent Pictures Entertainment, Inc. has 

also been working on a new production, while using its 3D video technologies to further develop 

links with partners in Japan and overseas.

Policies Going Forward
In the Group Business we have positioned multi-purpose use of IP at the core of our strategy for 

building our competitive strength as a corporation. Accordingly, we promote a diverse content 

business, harnessing synergies from multiple use of content across a wide range of entertain-

ment fields, including pachinko/pachislot, mobile, video, publishing, animation and sports.

In the areas of online services, including mobile, which is our second vector for growth, we 

took several measures to increase paid membership in “Fields Mobile.” These included develop-

ing new services to achieve cross-media usage for the Pachinko/Pachislot (PS) Field and Mobile 

Field, a stronger response to the next-generation mobile device market, including smartphones, 

and establishing joint ventures to plan and produce digital content using diverse IP. Looking 

ahead, we will continue to strengthen these activities to achieve steady results, and to develop 

new business pillars to add to pachinko/pachislot in the future.

Moreover, we will capture new business opportunities in other entertainment fields, including 

video, publishing, and animation, by utilizing content that suits the characteristics of each media 

type. In this way, we will continue to drive the overall growth of the Group.

s	Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd.
	 (Movie Launches and Scheduled Launches)

Ultraman Zero: 
The Revenge of Belial

© 2011 Ultraman Saga Production 
Committee

© 2010 UZ-ROB Film Partners

s	Digital Frontier Inc. 
	 (3DCG, Movie and Game Movie Production Features)

s	HERO’S Inc. 
(Comic Magazine)

s	Lucent Pictures Entertainment, Inc.
	 (New Animation Production)

TEKKEN BLOOD 
VENGEANCE

BERSERK
(Scheduled for release in January 2012)

HERO’S Monthly
(Scheduled for launch in November 2011)

©NAMCO BANDAI Games Inc.

©HERO’S

©Kentaro Miura (Studio Waga) and 
Hakusensha/BERSERK FILM PARTNERS

©NAMCO BANDAI Games Inc.

TEKKEN HYBRID

Ultraman Saga
2D and 3D released 

simultaneously
(Scheduled for launch  

in 2012)
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Pachinko/pachislot

¥19.3 trillion

Games, gambling
and eating out

¥24.1 trillion

Sports

¥4.0 trillion

Within the entertainment market, markets based on new technologies are 
thriving. In the fields of hobbies and creativity in particular, the movie 
market with its newly adopted 3D technology recorded its highest ever box 
office earnings, while the spread of new mobile devices such as smart-
phones has created a new mode for enjoying conventional entertainment.
  Meanwhile, pachinko/pachislot remains one of Japan’s most popular 
forms of entertainment. The market accounts for approximately 28.5% 
of the country’s entire entertainment market. Around 13% of Japan’s 
population play pachinko or pachislot.
  Data in this section covers not only the entire entertainment market in 
Japan, but also includes specific market data for pachinko/pachislot 
which occupies a central portion of this market.

(Halls)

(Thousand units)(Thousand units)

(Units)

(Billions of yen)(Times)

Number of Pachinko Halls and Machines Installed Per Hall

Scale of Japan’s Entertainment Market

Scale of the Machine Sales Market

Pachinko Hall Profit Structure

Pachinko/Pachislot Market Data

Number of Machines Installed and Annual Turnover

	 No. of pachinko machines installed (Left)
	 No. of pachislot machines installed (Left)
	Pachinko machine turnover (Right)
	Pachislot machine turnover (Right)

	 No. of combined pachinko/pachislot halls (Left)
	 No. of specialist pachislot halls (Left)
	No. of game machines installed per hall (Right)

	 No. of pachinko machines sold (Left)
	 No. of pachislot machines sold (Left)
	Pachinko machine sales (Right)
	Pachislot machine sales (Right)

Scale of Japan’s pachinko industry  ¥19.3 trillion (Total value of pachinko ball/medal rental)

Premiums  ¥17.0 trillion (Payouts)
Gross profit 
¥2.3 trillion

Gross profit  ¥2.3 trillion

New machine replacement 
expenses
(Machine purchase expenses)

Pachinko machines:  
¥886.9 billion
Pachislot machines:  
¥286.7 billion

Machine market: 
approx. ¥1,173.6 billion

Reinvestment 
for attracting 
customers

Net profit

 New store and refurbishment expenses

 Promotion, advertising and service expenses

 Peripheral equipment expenses

 Other operating expenses

 Net profit

Pachinko hall 
peripheral businesses

Source: �“2010 White Paper on Leisure,” published by Japan Productivity Center; 
“2010 Trend and Market Share of Pachinko Related Manufacturers” published 
by Yano Research Institute Ltd.; National Police Agency statistics; some Company 
estimates

Market Data

¥67.9
tril l ion

Hobbies and
creative activities

¥10.8 trillion

Sightseeing and
holiday-making

¥9.5 trillion
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Hideo Ito

Director; Division Manager, Corporate Division

FULFILLING OUR RESPONSIBILITY TO SOCIETY

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

In the quest to realize the corporate philosophy of “The Greatest Leisure for All People,” Fields provides entertainment that 
contributes to richer lives for individuals and for society as a whole. Our basic approach to CSR is the sustainable promotion 
of these business activities in joint prosperity with our society. CSR activities have an important role to play in ensuring the 
sound management base and securing the trust and respect of society vital to this approach. In May 2008, we formed the 
CSR Committee, which has worked first and foremost to establish our Corporate Code of Conduct and promote CSR 
awareness-raising activities. The committee also oversees six working groups responsible for promoting various areas, such 
as activities supporting social contributions, compliance training, and information security enhancement. Consequently, there 
is a sense that our CSR approach is continuing to gain real traction among employees.

Our branches and offices in northeastern Japan (Tohoku) were damaged in the Great East Japan Earthquake. However, 
thanks to a verification system for confirming the whereabouts of our staff instituted last year as part of risk management 
measures, we were able to confirm the safety of all employees and their families on the day of the disaster. This proved 
extremely helpful, and allowed decision-making by the Disaster Countermeasures Division established in the immediate 
aftermath of the disaster to go smoothly. In terms of support for restoration efforts, the entire Group has come together to 
embody its hopes for the future in the Ultraman Foundation. This organization will provide ongoing assistance, both physical 
and mental, not only to employees and their families affected by the disaster, but to the children who will build a new future 
for the affected region. Furthermore, in response to a request by Japan’s Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry to con-
serve power during the summer of 2011, we resolved to reduce our total electricity consumption in-house by over 25% from 
the previous year. In addition to adjusting air conditioning and lighting usage to this end, we opted to utilize iPads, for exam-
ple, to curb electricity use in our daily operations, as part of a model of energy-saving measures that society at large will 
hopefully emulate. We also supplied employees with official shirts designated by Fields that meet the specifications of the 
national-level “Cool Biz” energy-reduction program for businesses. As these actions suggest, there is a clear impression that 
efforts taken on our own initiative to conserve energy are functioning well.

Fields is committed to delivering quality products and services both for sustainable growth as a company and to fulfill its 
social responsibility. We view customer satisfaction as our first priority to this end. Accordingly, we will put an environment in 
place for raising the level of satisfaction among the employees that support this, the benefits of which will return to share-
holders in the form of profit. There are issues we need to confront, such as the broadening concept of who our customers 
are as our business evolves and embedding CSR throughout the entire Fields Group. Rest assured, though, that with your 
long-term support, we will steadily address these issues one step at a time going forward.

Interview with the CSR Committee Chair
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Social Contribution
Activities Promotion

Board of Directors

ES (Employee Satisfaction) 
Promotion

CS (Customer Satisfaction) 
Promotion Compliance Promotion Information Security 

Promotion
Risk Management

Promotion

Divisions/regional offices/branches

Subsidiaries and affiliates

l	Business activities with CSR awareness
l	Involvement in local communities

l	Group management with CSR awareness

l	Formulation of Companywide CSR policies
l	Formulation of Corporate Code of Conduct
l	Monitoring and direction of CSR activities

q CSR Committee

q Working Groups

Cooperation

Office Promotion Working Group Leaders

Key Activity Areas
l	Environmental protection
l	Social contribution activities 

and measures

l	Respecting individuality
l	Fostering workplaces for all 

people to work easily

l	Improving safety and quality 
of products and services

l	Compliance education l	Measures to protect Company 
assets

l	Legal and appropriate public 
relations activities

l	Risk management

Committee Chair (Executive in charge of CSR)

Role of the CSR Committee
Chaired by the executive in charge of CSR, the CSR Committee is made up of the leaders of the CSR promotion working groups and adminis-
tration staff. The CSR Committee formulates policies relating to CSR management, approves the Corporate Code of Conduct, and monitors the 
CSR promotion activities run by each promotion working group.

Role of Working Groups
The CSR promotion working groups autonomously plan and execute concrete measures based on their respective activity policies. They make 
timely progress reports about their activities to the Office, and report quarterly to the CSR Committee.

Activity Policies

Compliance Promotion

Compliance is an important aspect of earning the trust and faith of 
all stakeholders connected with Fields’ business. We must ensure 
that all our business activities are carried out appropriately and 
legally. We will carry out measures to foster not only adherence to 
laws and regulations among our employees, but also a strong sense 
of ethics and morals.

Information Security Promotion

Part of earning the trust and faith of our stakeholders connected 
with Fields’ business involves acquiring, maintaining, managing 
and utilizing Fields’ company information and intellectual property 
(IP) in a way that is both legal and appropriate. We have set rules 
around these important tangible and intangible Company assets, 
and are taking steps to ensure they are known and followed 
throughout the Company.

Risk Management Promotion

Fields prioritizes safety in its business activities. To ensure the safety 
of employees and other persons connected with Fields, we have 
developed preventative measures and countermeasures against the 
occurrence of not only accidents and disasters, but all risks relating 
to our business in general. We have also built a framework for 
avoiding and reducing risks, and minimizing the impact if they 
should materialize.

CSR Structure

Social Contribution Activities Promotion

With the goal of coexisting in harmony with the global environment 
and building excellent relationships with stakeholders connected 
with Fields’ business, Fields will implement strategies to protect the 
environment and contribute to society.

ES (Employee Satisfaction) Promotion

Fields believes that it is vital to foster a corporate culture, environ-
ment and values that allow employees to feel happy, in order to 
bring happiness to customers and trading partners. To this end we 
insist on respect for the individuality of employees and take steps to 
create a working environment where employees can feel secure and 
relaxed as they work.

CS (Customer Satisfaction) Promotion

Fields aims to delight customers and trading partners and to earn 
their trust and faith. We will achieve this through measures to improve 
the safety and quality of the products and services we provide.
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l �Active Participation in Cleanup Programs and Other Local Environmental Activities 
Environmental and Social Contribution Activities

In promoting its environmental activities, Fields recruits volunteers in-house to take part in cleanup 

programs wherever it has operations. In 2010, employees and members of their families took part 

in the “Cleanup Campaign at Kugenuma Beach” on September 11. This event was sponsored by 

an NGO tackling the global problem of trash in the world’s oceans. The volunteers collected and 

sorted trash found drifting ashore as part of the cleanup. On October 5, Fields joined forces with 

the local government, residents and businesses of Shibuya Ward, Tokyo, where its own head office 

is located, to participate in the Shibuya town cleanup regulation enlightening campaign on October 5. 

Employees took part cleaning the area around Shibuya Station and promoting awareness of rules 

regarding smoking and non-smoking areas.

On April 28, 2011, Fields took part in another event in Shibuya, this time a cleanup day involv-

ing the entire ward. Volunteers cleaned up around Shibuya Station and other key areas.

Going forward, we hope to encourage continuous participation in similar activities not only at 

our head office but at branches and regional offices as well, as we strive for an even greater contri-

bution to local communities.

l �Companywide Cooperation in Energy Conservation to Cope with Possible Summer 
2011 Power Shortages  Environmental and Social Contribution Activities

Electricity supply shortages are projected for Japan in summer 2011 due to effects stemming from 

the Great East Japan Earthquake. As part of cooperation in conserving energy to deal with this 

problem, companies have been asked to reduce their power consumption by 15% year on year by 

the Japanese government. In response, Fields aims to cut total power consumption together with 

all branches and regional offices by more than 25%.

Specifically, we are moving Companywide to reduce power consumption related to air condi-

tioning, lighting and office equipment. Particularly where computers are concerned, we have 

slashed power usage by 45% by putting PCs in sleep mode when not in use. Fields has also dis-

tributed iPads to employees to use in the course of regular operations. Because these devices 

consume just 1/20th of the power that PCs do, we have put an in-house system in place to widely 

utilize them in operations. As a more distinctive measure, Fields has also supplied employees with 

officially designated shirts to wear as part of their uniform during the summer months, in conjunc-

tion with promoting the “Super Cool Biz” ultra-energy-saving program for businesses.

Specific Initiatives to Save Energy

1. Air conditioning-related • Shorten hours of operation (9 a.m.–6 p.m., operation stopped after 6 p.m.)

• Fixed temperature settings (enforced 28°C setting)

• Air conditioning stopped in part of server room
2. Facility-related • Restricted the use of branch and regional office showrooms (Used for private showings only)

• Power conservation in lighting (partial removal of lighting, turned off neon, switched to LED lighting)

• Improved thermal shielding for buildings (attached window films, installed blinds)
3. Office equipment-related • Adopted sleep mode for PCs when not in use

• Used iPads to reduce computer usage

• Adopted energy-saving office equipment

• �Reduced power consumption from PCs, office equipment and AV equipment on standby (turned power off outside of approved usage times, 
disconnected from power outlets)

• Shortened operating times for certain servers
4. Cool Biz response • Introduced “Cool Biz” measures ahead of schedule and extended effective period (May 10, 2011 to October 31, 2011)

• Supplied Company-designated official shirts (from July)
5. Awareness-raising for employees • Distributed information on practical energy-saving tips for the home and ordinary social life

Examples of Activities From April 2010 Through August 2011

Scene from the Kugenuma Beach (Kanagawa Prefecture) 
Cleanup Campaign

Switchover to LED lighting at the head office
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l Establishment and Enactment of the Ultraman Foundation  Group CSR

Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd. and all other participating Group companies came together to estab-

lish the Ultraman Foundation. The purpose of the foundation is to provide ongoing emotional and 

material support for years to come to those whose lives have been affected by the Great East Japan 

Earthquake, in particular the children that embody our hopes for the future.

On April 10, 2011, live “Ultra Hero” shows were held in Ishinomaki, Minamisanriku and 

Kesennuma in Miyagi Prefecture to provide relief supplies and bring smiles to the children in this 

devastated region. The scope of this activity was later widened to include the prefectures of Chiba, 

Fukushima and Iwate.

Beyond donations alone, the Ultraman Foundation is committed to providing continued support for 

the physical and psychological wellbeing of the survivors of the March 2011 earthquake and tsunami.

Other Initiatives

• Co-sponsorship of charity golf tournament

• �Participation in regular cleanup activities in Shibuya Ward, Tokyo (The union beautification day at Shibuya Station)

• Installation of AED (automatic external defibrillator) units

• Promotion of “Warm Biz” energy-saving program

• Renewal of ISO 9001:2008, the latest standard in certification for quality management

• �Establishment of the Okinawa Working Center to promote employment for people with disabilities

Main Activities Conducted (2011)
April 10: Relief visit to Ishinomaki, Minamisanriku and Kesennuma in Miyagi Prefecture

May 19: Monetary donation of ¥30 million to Miyagi Prefecture

May 29: Relief visit to Asahi City, Chiba Prefecture

July 9: Monetary donation of ¥20 million to Fukushima Prefecture; visit to Sukagawa City, Fukushima Prefecture

July 10: Relief visit to Big Palette Fukushima arena in Koriyama City, Fukushima Prefecture

August 5: Relief visit to Ishinomaki City, Miyagi Prefecture

September 16: Monetary donation of ¥20 million and donation of two microbuses to Iwate Prefecture

September 17: Relief visit to Miyagi City and the town of Otsuchi in Iwate Prefecture

ISO 27001: 2005 certificate

Support for charities after the Great East Japan Earthquake
Scene from the venue of “THE LEGEND CHARITY PRO-AM 
TOURNAMENT”

Scene from Ultra Hero show 
(Ishinomaki City, Miyagi Prefecture)

http://www.ultraman-kikin.jp/

Scene from relief activities in the disaster zone 
(Minamisanriku Town, Miyagi Prefecture)

l Initiatives for Stronger Management of Information Assets  Information Security

In August 2007, Fields acquired internationally recognized ISO/IEC 27001:2005 certification and 

JIS Q 27001: 2006 certification for its information security management system. Following subse-

quent screenings to maintain this status, both certifications were renewed in July 2011.

In light of growing interest in the management of information assets accompanying the rapid 

advance of information technology in recent years, the Company pursued these certifications as a 

means to continuously strengthen its information security measures, viewing this task as a social 

responsibility. Certification by an objective third party and continuous renewal are strong acknowledg-

ments that the security measures promoted by the Company are of an internationally recognized level.

The Company's information assets are stored as backup data in line with its business continuity 

plan (BCP). Going forward, we will apply the lessons learned from the Great East Japan Earthquake 

and formulate an even stronger BCP capable of withstanding the damage scenarios postulated for 

a major disaster in the Tokyo area, where Fields' head office functions are located.

s �An example of the relief activities of the Ultraman Foundation is published on the cover.
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Corporate Governance

Basic Approach to Corporate Governance
Fields’ corporate philosophy and mission is to provide “The Greatest Leisure for All People,” with the sustainable increase in 

corporate value as the basic principle guiding Company management.

We think one of the important management issues in realizing this basic policy is ensuring that corporate governance 

functions effectively. To this end, we will enhance our corporate governance system by advancing reforms in our manage-

ment structures and institutions within the framework of the Board of Directors, the Board of Statutory Auditors, the Indepen-

dent Auditor and the Board of Executive Officers.

The Fields Group, comprising the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries, conducts corporate management in line 

with mutually agreed-upon management plans, following careful deliberation of policies and initiatives based on the Group’s 

management philosophy. In parallel, we strive to improve the corporate value of the entire Group through rigorous adherence 

to standards for extending or terminating investment and finance to our Group companies.

General Meeting of Shareholders

Board of Directors Independent Auditor

Board of Statutory Auditors

Internal Audit Office

Nomination and dismissal

Nomination 
and 
dismissal

Internal audit
Accounting 
audit

Report

Report

Report

Report

Audit

Cooperation

Cooperation

Cooperation

Nomination/Rejection of reappointment/
Approval of dismissal/Confirmation of 
accounting audit/Verification of independence

Nomination and dismissalNomination and dismissal

Business operating divisions

Board of Executive Officers

Chairman & CEO/
President & COO

Details of Corporate Functions and Internal Control System

Matters related to corporate governance Details

Governance format Company with Board of Statutory Auditors System

Chairman of the Board of Directors President

Number of directors (outside directors) 10 (1)

Board of Directors’ meetings in fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 20

Number of statutory auditors (outside auditors) 4 (4)

Board of Statutory Auditors’ meetings in fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 17

Board of Directors’ meetings attended by outside auditors 
in fiscal year ended March 31, 2011

Shigeru Matsushita: 19; Tadao Koike: 19; Yoshika Furuta: 19; 
Koichiro Nakamoto: 19

Attendance at Board of Statutory Auditors’ meetings 
in fiscal year ended March 31, 2011

Shigeru Matsushita: 17; Tadao Koike: 17; Yoshika Furuta: 17; 
Koichiro Nakamoto: 16

Independent auditor BDO Sanyu & Co.

Internal audit division Internal Audit Office

[Corporate Governance System]
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l Oversight and Execution of Management
The Board of Directors comprises 10 directors (including 1 outside director) and makes decisions on execution of business for 

the Company. It also has authority to monitor directors’ execution of their duties. The Board of Directors meets once a month 

and holds ad hoc meetings as necessary to make decisions on important management matters, and report on and monitor the 

status of business execution. This system allows for quick management decisions to be made. In addition, Fields has a compre-

hensive set of regulations covering all business operations throughout the Company. These clearly documented rules underpin 

a system for business execution in which the authority and responsibility of each position in the Company is clearly laid out.

l Statutory Auditors, Board of Statutory Auditors and Internal Audits
Fields has a Board of Statutory Auditors comprising 4 statutory auditors, all of whom are outside auditors. The statutory 

auditors attend important meetings in the Company, including Board of Directors’ meetings, and offer their opinions. They 

also interview each division and examine decision-making related documents to conduct audits. This allows them to monitor 

the directors’ execution of duties.

Fields has also established an internal audit organization in the form of the Internal Audit Office, which reports directly to 

the President & COO. The office has 4 members, including a General Manager. These 4 members follow an internal audit 

plan decided at the start of the fiscal year to conduct regular evaluations of internal controls and internal audits governing 

general business activities at the Company and its subsidiaries. The office offers advice and recommendations for improving 

business execution based on the results of these evaluations and audits.

The Internal Audit Office also attends the monthly meetings of the Board of Statutory Auditors, and the Company makes 

opportunities for statutory auditors to talk with directors and key personnel on an individual basis. In addition, the Board of 

Statutory Auditors and the Internal Audit Office have a quarterly meeting with the Independent Auditor to exchange opinions. 

During the interim and end-of-year audits of the Company, its branch offices and affiliated companies by the Independent 

Auditor, the Board of Statutory Auditors and Internal Audit Office attend as needed and keep in contact in other ways to 

bolster the auditing functions.

Fields operates a rigorous and appropriate system of checks through internal audits, and audits of the statutory auditors 

and Independent Auditor. In this way, the Company works to strengthen supervisory functions and achieve more transparent 

business management.

Reasons for Appointing Outside Director and Outside Auditors
Fields has appointed the following outside director and outside auditors.

Outside director
Name Reason for being appointed as an outside director

Shigesato Itoi Shigesato Itoi was appointed as the outside director to proactively participate in the business strategies of the Company because of his work 
as a copywriter and an essayist, his deep insight into the Company’s content business, and his abundant experience and original ideas.

Outside auditors
Name Reason for being appointed as an outside auditor (including reason for being designated as an independent member of the board, if applicable)

Shigeru Matsushita Standing auditor Shigeru Matsushita is an economist who has worked for major financial institutions and finance-related research 
organizations. He was appointed with the aim of reflecting his extensive wisdom in the Company’s management. He satisfies the criterion of 
independence, and was designated as an independent member of the board after it was judged he would pose no conflict of interest to the 
general shareholders of the Company.

Tadao Koike Part-time auditor Tadao Koike is a former executive officer of a major securities company, and is a veteran in the primary securities market. 
He was appointed with the aim of reflecting his extensive wisdom in the Company’s management. He satisfies the criterion of indepen-
dence, and was designated as an independent member of the board after it was judged he would pose no conflict of interest to the general 
shareholders of the Company.

Yoshika Furuta Part-time auditor Yoshika Furuta is a veteran certified tax accountant who for long was an official with the National Tax Agency. He was 
appointed with the aim of reflecting his extensive wisdom in the Company’s management. He satisfies the criterion of independence, and 
was designated as an independent member of the board after it was judged he would pose no conflict of interest to the general sharehold-
ers of the Company.

Koichiro Nakamoto Part-time auditor Koichiro Nakamoto is a veteran in legal affairs who possesses a deep legal knowledge based on his long career as an 
attorney at law. He was appointed with the aim of reflecting his extensive wisdom in the Company’s management.

l Independent Members of the Board
Three of the outside auditors, Shigeru Matsushita, Tadao Koike and Yoshika Furuta, have been designated as independent 

members of the board. They satisfy the criterion of independence, and were selected as independent members of the board 

after it was judged they would pose no conflict of interest to the general shareholders of the Company.
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Policy on Setting Compensation
In accordance with the 19th Annual General Meeting of Shareholders resolution of June 27, 2007, the annual compensation 

amount for directors was set at within ¥800 million (including an amount within ¥50 million for compensation of outside 

directors). At the 17th Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held on June 29, 2005, the annual compensation amount for 

statutory auditors was set at within ¥50 million.

The amount of compensation paid to directors in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 was ¥672 million (of which ¥15 

million was paid to the outside director), while the total amount of compensation paid to statutory auditors was ¥18 million. 

The numbers of persons receiving payment were 10 directors and 4 statutory auditors.

Disclosure of the Results of Voting at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
At the 23rd Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held on June 22, 2011, shareholders voted on and approved resolu-

tions as proposed for the disposition of surplus (¥2,500 per share, ¥830 million in total) and the appointment of 10 members 

of the Board of Directors. For detailed results of the proxy vote, please view the Company website.

Strengthening Compliance and Risk Management
Fields has appointed a director responsible for compliance, created compliance-related regulations and adopted an 

internal reporting system; it also conducts compliance education and training programs for directors and employees. The 

Internal Audit Office audits the status of compliance operations, reporting the results regularly to the President and 

Board of Statutory Auditors.

In creating a risk management system, Fields has appointed a director responsible for risk management, formulates risk 

management regulations, monitors market, investment, disaster and other risks, and addresses risks on a Companywide 

basis. Moreover, each division has a department responsible for managing risks associated with its respective operations. 

The Internal Audit Office audits the status of normal risk management conducted by each division, reporting the results to 

the President and the Board of Statutory Auditors.

In managing legal risk, Fields has all contracts centrally managed by the Legal Division and, as a rule, all important con-

tracts receive a legal check from a legal advisor to avoid any unexpected risks.

For other risks relating to business and other areas recognized by the Company, please refer to page 45.

Internal Control System
Since April 2006, Fields has been working to build a management structure that encourages further growth. As part of this 

effort, in October 2007 we revamped our information systems in order to provide a flexible structure able to cope with busi-

ness expansion. We also introduced a core business operation system featuring J-SOX-compliant internal control functions 

and information security functions, and strengthened our system infrastructure. These actions have made business issues 

more visible, accelerated our decision-making process and made our internal control functions an integral part of our 

structure.

l System for Ensuring Reliable Financial Reporting
In accordance with the provisions of Japan’s Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and other laws, Fields has created and 

operates a system for internal control over financial reporting, and carries out ongoing evaluation of the system to ensure that 

it is functioning properly, amending it as required.
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Board of Directors

Directors, Executive Officers and Officers responsible for 
Company divisions and segments

Important information

Report

Executive Officer 
Responsible 

for Information Disclosure
Information Disclosure

Framework for Timely Disclosure

Submission Cooperation Instruction

Discussion
Resolution and 

approval

Corporate 
Communications Office

General Supervisor of 
Information

l Duty to Create and Explain an Information Disclosure System
Fields strives to disclose information to all stakeholders, including shareholders and investors, in a manner that is timely, 

unbiased, accurate and continuous, based on a set of information disclosure guidelines. The Company undertakes investor 

relations (IR) activities with the goal of building relationships of trust with a greater number of people.

Specifically, we have formulated an IR policy and made this public. We also disclose information on an IR section of our 

website dedicated to investor information, and publish an annual report and shareholders’ newsletter. Other IR activities 

include Company information presentations given by the President for individual investors throughout Japan, and quarterly 

financial presentations for analysts and institutional investors.

Furthermore, the Company actively works to improve direct communication with all of its stakeholders, and the manage-

ment shares information about stakeholders’ requests and evaluations throughout the entire Company, to help improve 

management and raise corporate value.

l Overview of the Framework for Timely Disclosure
The General Supervisor of Information reports and submits the Company’s material information pertaining to matters of 

decision, matters of occurrence, financial results and other matters to the Board of Directors for approval. Once approved, 

this material information is disclosed and controlled by the Executive Officer Responsible for Information Disclosure. As 

Fields’ designated Executive Officer Responsible for Information Disclosure, the Executive Officer and General Manager of 

the Corporate Communications Office is responsible for gathering the required information from the various divisions and 

segments within the Company and deliberating the necessity of their disclosure in accordance with Regulations for the 

Timely Disclosure of Information by Issuers of Listed Securities maintained by the Osaka Securities Exchange and others.

Basic Stance on Rejection of Antisocial Forces and Preparatory Measures
l Basic Stance on Rejection of Antisocial Forces
Fields conducts sound corporate management, and strongly rejects any attempts by antisocial forces to influence manage-

ment activities. The Company deals firmly at an organization level with any contact from antisocial forces or organizations.

l Preparatory Measures for Rejecting Antisocial Forces
Fields has distributed a Corporate Code of Conduct to all executives and employees, which clearly explains the Company’s 

resolute rejection of any relationship with antisocial forces or organizations that threaten the social order of society or public 

safety. Specifically, we have designated a department that participates in liaison meetings run by the police department in 

charge of the area and other relevant organizations, and participates in other external specialist organizations, following their 

guidance. We attend talks, courses and seminars to gather and manage information about the issue. We have also created a 

response manual and use this to thoroughly educate our employees about this issue.
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Directors, Corporate Auditors and Executive Officers  (As of June 22, 2011)

Chairman & CEO Hidetoshi Yamamoto

President & COO Takashi Oya

Senior Managing Director; Responsible for Group Business and Division Manager, Business Division Tetsuya Shigematsu

Senior Managing Director; Responsible for Pachinko/Pachislot Business Kiyoharu Akiyama

Managing Director; Division Manager, Contents Division Masakazu Kurihara

Director; Division Manager, Planning and Administration Division Hiroyuki Yamanaka

Director; Division Manager, Corporate Division Hideo Ito

Director; Division Manager, Sales Division Akira Fujii

Director; General Manager, Office of the Chairman Toru Suenaga

Outside Director Shigesato Itoi

Standing Auditor Shigeru Matsushita

Auditor Tadao Koike

Auditor Yoshika Furuta

Auditor Koichiro Nakamoto

Executive Officer; Deputy Senior General Manager, Planning and Administration Division and 
General Manager, Finance and Budget Department, Planning and Administration Division Kenichi Ozawa

Executive Officer; General Manager, Corporate Communications Office Hideaki Hatanaka

Executive Officer; Division Manager, Development Division Teruo Fujishima

Executive Officer; General Manager, Sales Strategy Department, Sales Division; and Hokkaido-Tohoku 
Regional Manager, Sales Division Hideo Wakazono

Executive Officer; General Manager, Group Business Development Department, Business Division and 
Executive Producer Yosuke Ozawa

Executive Officer; Deputy Senior General Manager, Contents Division and General Manager, 
Planning and Promotion Department, Contents Division Yusuke Kurokawa

Executive Officer; Deputy Senior General Manager, Contents Division and General Manager, 
Research and Development Department, Contents Division Tadamasa Oshio

Executive Officer; Executive Producer, Business Division and General Manager, Consumer Business 
Department, Business Division 
	 (Japan Sports Marketing Inc. Representative Director/President) Nobuyuki Kikuchi

Executive Officer; Executive Producer, Business Division 
	 (Digital Frontier Inc. Representative Director/President) Hidenori Ueki

Executive Officer; Executive Producer, Business Division 
	 (Lucent Pictures Entertainment, Inc. Representative Corporate Executive) Eiichi Kamagata

Executive Officer; Executive Producer, Business Division 
	 (FutureScope Corporation Representative Director/President) Masao Tominaga
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Consolidated Financial Highlights

Management’s Analysis of Financial Position and Business Results

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2004

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2005

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2006

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2007

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2008

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2009

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2010

Year Ended 
March 31, 

2011

Results of Operations (millions of yen):

Net sales ¥66,211 ¥81,658 ¥  96,814 ¥  85,321 ¥101,818 ¥  73,035 ¥  66,342 ¥103,593

Gross profit 21,578 24,752 29,737 29,248 34,544 24,024 26,889 35,129

Gross profit margin (%) 32.6 30.3 30.7 34.3 33.9 32.9 40.5 33.9

Operating income 11,866 12,097 12,348 8,944 13,158 1,960 8,124 13,136

Operating margin (%) 17.9 14.8 12.8 10.5 12.9 2.7 12.2 12.7

Net income (loss) 6,620 6,926 7,085 3,710 5,296 (1,481) 3,289 7,520

Net margin (%) 10.0 8.5 7.3 4.3 5.2 — 5.0 7.3

Financial Position (millions of yen):

Total assets 37,115 72,584 87,556 66,081 69,168 52,064 81,329 78,971

Net assets 14,507 33,426 39,411 42,836 46,331 39,496 41,187 47,021

Shareholders’ equity 14,507 33,426 39,411 41,115 44,485 39,463 41,064 46,779

Cash Flows (millions of yen):

Cash flows from operating activities 851 2,965 6,164 5,293 11,127 4,147 8,429 8,005

Cash flows from investing activities (3,190) (5,257) (2,224) (4,772) (14,604) (6,182) (1,011) (4,356)

Cash flows from financing activities 2,029 10,177 (1,540) 1,488 (1,384) 602 (2,687) (3,915)

Per-share Data (yen):

Earnings (loss) per share ¥40,465 ¥19,888 ¥  20,118 ¥  10,692 ¥  15,263 ¥   (4,271) ¥    9,796 ¥  22,643

Net assets per share 89,305 96,026 113,275 118,487 128,201 117,326 123,645 140,853

Dividends per share 24,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,500 4,500 4,500 5,000

Key Financial Indicators (%):

Return (loss) on equity (ROE) 56.9 28.9 19.5 9.2 12.4 (3.5) 8.2 17.1

Return on assets (ROA) 45.0 22.8 16.4 12.0 17.3 1.6   11.6 17.1

Shareholders’ equity ratio 39.1 46.0 45.0 62.2 64.3 75.8   50.5 59.2

Payout ratio* 20.1 20.7 20.3 37.4 29.5 —   45.9 22.1

* Payout ratios for the years ended March 31, 2004 to March 31, 2006 are non-consolidated.

Fields Corporation   Annual Report 2011

38

Fields Corporation   Annual Report 2011



Overview
Business Environment
In the year ended March 31, 2011 (April 1, 2010–March 31, 2011), the 
Japanese economy initially moved toward a modest recovery, supported 
by firm exports and consumer spending. Life for many in Japan, how-
ever, was disrupted by the Great East Japan Earthquake that struck on 
March 11, 2011. Corporate supply structures were also severely 
impacted, resulting in the risk of downward pressure on the economy.

In the entertainment market, while signs of market revitalization from 
the utilization of new technologies emerged, the temporary downturn in 
consumer sentiment due to the disaster and the somber mood that 
prevailed as a result became causes for concern.

On the other hand, the pachinko/pachislot market, home to the 
Company’s core business operations, is beginning to regain its vigor 
overall, as seen in growth in the number of machines installed in the 
market for the first time in four years.

(For details regarding the business environment, refer to “Market Trends and Outlook” on page 21 and 
page 24.)

General Overview
In striving to realize its corporate philosophy—“The Greatest Leisure for 
All People”—the Company has positioned multi-purpose use of intel-
lectual property (IP) at the core of its strategy for building competitive 
strength as a corporation. Accordingly, we promote a diverse content 
business, harnessing synergies from multiple use of content across a 
wide range of entertainment fields, including pachinko/pachislot, mobile, 
video, publishing, animation and sports.

In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, the Company posted sub-
stantial sales and profit growth, as favorable growth in pachislot machine 
sales in the Pachinko/pachislot Business resulted in record machine 
sales. In the Group Business, earnings improved with the consolidation 
of Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd. and Digital Frontier Inc. in April 
2010, contributing to better business performance.

In line with the medium-term management plan, the Company also 
continued to make steady progress in building a base for sustained 
growth through constant checks that take into account changes in the 
external environment.

(For a detailed overview, refer to “Management Interview” on page 7.)

Business Results
Net Sales
Consolidated net sales in the year ended March 31, 2011 amounted to 
¥103,593 million, up 56.2% year on year. This mainly reflected 
increased pachislot machine sales volume.

Gross Profit
Gross profit was ¥35,129 million, 30.6% higher year on year, largely as a 
result of strong pachinko/pachislot machine sales.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses for the fiscal year 
ended March 31, 2011 came to ¥21,993 million, up 17.2% year on 
year. This increase was due to higher promotion and advertising 
expenses associated with machine sales and an increase in expenses 
from the consolidation of Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd., Digital 
Frontier Inc. and MICROCABIN CORP.

Operating Income
Operating income was ¥13,136 million, a year-on-year increase of 
61.7%, and reflected the consolidation of Tsuburaya Productions Co., 
Ltd. and Digital Frontier Inc., in addition to robust sales of pachinko/
pachislot machines.

	 Operating income (millions of yen) (left)
	Operating margin (%) (right)

	 Net sales (millions of yen)

   

Net Sales Operating Income/Operating Margin

	 Net income (loss) (millions of yen) (left)
	Net margin (%) (right)

 

Net Income (Loss) and Net Margin
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	 Pachinko machines (thousand units)
	 Pachislot machines (thousand units)

 

Number of Pachinko/pachislot 
Machines Sold

Proportion of Sales by Segment

Mobile Field Segment

2.0%

• Segment Overview by Operating Segment
Pachinko/Pachislot (PS) Field Segment
The Company is working to improve on its share of machines sold with 
the launch of machines created with even greater attention to rich game 
and entertainment value, accurately responding to changes in the 
pachinko/pachislot market.

In the sale of pachislot machines during the fiscal year under review, 
the strong reception received by machines Onimusha: Dawn of Dreams 
and Neon Genesis Evangelion—Die Spur der SEELE resulted in strong 
growth in additional orders. A total of six machines were released includ-
ing Ore no Sora—Spirit of Young Justice, part of a series to commemo-
rate Rodeo’s 10th anniversary, and MOBASLO Evangelion—for your own 
wish (still on sale), equipped with a “MOBASLO” gaming function that 
offers new gaming services. The Company sold a total of 217,659 
pachislot machines, an increase of 98,513 from the previous fiscal year. 
From this result, the Company’s share of the number of pachislot 
machines sold was 24.5%, giving it the top share of the industry for the 
second consecutive year (based on research by Fields).

Although the delivery date for MOBASLO Evangelion—for your own 
wish, released in late March 2011, was pushed back to the next fiscal 
year at the request of certain customers due to the impact of the Great 
East Japan Earthquake, sales remained robust through the third quarter 
of the year, resulting in only a limited impact on full-year business 
performance.

In the sale of pachinko machines, the Company launched four 
machines, including CR Evangelion—Evangelical of the beginnings, 
which became a major hit. In total, 262,614 units were sold, 68,120 
fewer than in the previous fiscal year. The Company’s share of the 
number of pachinko machines sold was 9.1%, roughly on par with the 
previous-year figure (based on research by Fields).

In terms of initiatives in the field of video software development, in 
January 2011 the Company consolidated MICROCABIN CORP., a spe-
cialist in the development of graphics software for pachinko/pachislot 
machine LCDs, after acquiring 85% of its shares from AQ INTERACTIVE 
INC.

Consequently, the Pachinko/Pachislot (PS) Field recorded net sales 
of ¥94,115 million, a year-on-year increase of 50.9%, and operating 
income of ¥12,866 million, up 58.2%.

Mobile Field Segment
In the Mobile Field, the Company sought during the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2011 to expand the number of paying service members, 
tapping into its strength in pachinko/pachislot-related content to 
expand and enhance online services. Aggressive investment was also 
made in the development of new services leveraging content owned in 
other fields.

Mobile content specialist “Fields Mobile” performed well on synergies 
with pachinko/pachislot machine sales. Moreover, the new Sha-Me-Ji 
mobile content service, which aims to create a new communication 
culture, has grown faster than initially expected. The Company also 
stepped up its response to the rapidly growing market for next-
generation mobile devices such as smartphones, including distributing a 
pachislot machine simulator app. In other moves to promote media 
crossover between the Pachinko/Pachislot (PS) Field and the Mobile 
Field, the Company launched MOBASLO, a service which links to 
MOBASLO Evangelion—for your own wish and Pspace, a virtual online 
pachinko hall.

In December 2010, Fields established IP Bros. Incorporated as a 
joint venture with NHN Japan Corporation, the operator of online game 
portal site “Hangame.” IP Bros. Incorporated is working to build a frame-
work for supplying IP held by the Fields Group and partner companies to 
diverse platforms.

As a result, the Mobile Field recorded net sales of ¥2,032 million, a 
year-on-year increase of 11.6%, and operating income of ¥236 million, 
down 39.9%.
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Net Sales
The Company sells pachinko/pachislot machines through two 
different channels: distribution sales, which are direct sales through 
the activities of our branch offices, and agency sales, which are 
indirect sales through brokering activities.

In distribution sales, we purchase pachinko/pachislot machines 
from manufacturers and sell them to users (pachinko halls). In 
agency sales, on the other hand, we operate as an agent for 
pachinko/pachislot machines and receive commissions from 
pachinko/pachislot machine manufacturers for such services as: (a) 
arranging sales/purchase agreements on behalf of pachinko/pachis-
lot manufacturers and pachinko halls, (b) collecting sales for 
machines, (c) preparing for the opening of pachinko halls on their 
behalf, and (d) providing after-sales services.

Net sales for distribution and agency sales are reported 
separately.

For distribution sales we record the sales amount for machines 
sold to pachinko halls, while for agency sales we record sales com-
missions paid by manufacturers.

Income Structure for Pachinko/pachislot Business

Since we use two different sales channels, our net sales are 
affected by the relative balance of distribution and agency sales.

Cost of Sales
Purchase costs of pachislot machines represent a major part of the 
cost of sales for the Group based on distribution sales. Sales com-
missions we pay to secondary agencies for the sales of pachinko/
pachislot machines are also included in these costs.

Selling, General and Administrative (SG&A) Expenses
SG&A expenses of the Group primarily consist of personnel 
expenses for sales staff and other employees along with land and 
facility rent. Other major items under SG&A expenses include 
advertising and marketing expenses. These costs principally com-
prise the cost of participating in exhibitions as well as TV and news-
paper promotion expenditures.

Distribution Sales Model Agency Sales Model
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Sales amount Collection of sales amount

Collection
of sales 
amount

Remittance of 
sales amount

Collection
of sales 
amount

Purchase of 
machines

Payment of 
commissions

Remittance 
of sales 
amount

Remittance of 
sales amount

Payment of 
commissions

Payment of 
commissions

Agency 
(brokerage 
of sales)

Fields Fields
(primary agency)

Secondary 
agency

N
ationw

ide pachinko halls  
(our users)

N
ationw

ide pachinko halls  
(our users)

P
achislot m

achine m
anufacturer 

(R
odeo C

o., Ltd. and O
thers)

P
achinko/pachislot m

achine 
m

anufacturer

Sports Entertainment Field Segment
As in the previous year, the Company strove to improve the management 
of its sports-related businesses in the Sports Entertainment Field during 
the fiscal year under review.

Japan Sports Marketing Inc. initiated a full-scale revision of its athlete 
management business in light of significant changes in the market 
environment.

In the sports gym business, Fields provided professional services for 
professional athletes, and high-value-added services for health-
conscious people under the “Total Workout” brand. We worked to 

acquire members by appealing to the high quality of our services. We 
also continued to build programs to dovetail with the leisure needs of the 
wider public.

As a result, the Sports Entertainment Field recorded net sales of 
¥2,171 million, a year-on-year decrease of 10.1%, and an operating loss 
of ¥290 million, compared with an operating loss of ¥324 million in the 
previous fiscal year.

*�On August 23, 2011, the Company decided to dissolve Japan Sports Marketing Inc., the core company 
of this business, in connection with business reorganization. 
(For details, refer to the Company’s website.)
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Total Assets

	 Shareholders’ equity (millions of yen) (left)
	Shareholders’ equity ratio (%) (right)

	 Total assets (millions of yen)

 

Shareholders’ Equity and 

Shareholders’ Equity Ratio

	ROE (%)
	ROA (%)

 

ROE and ROA

Other Field Segment
In this field, the Company welcomed Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd. 
and Digital Frontier Inc. into the Group during the fiscal year under 
review. Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd. holds the high-quality IP rights 
to the “Ultraman Series,” while Digital Frontier Inc. is one of Japan’s 
leading computer graphics (CG) production companies. The Company 
has been working to develop new businesses with these two companies 
to expand the Group’s operations. In other parts of the Other Field, we 
have teamed up with Shogakukan Creative Inc. to jointly establish a 
publishing company called HERO’S Inc. Here, preparations are under 
way for producing a monthly comic magazine, among other activities 
aimed at creating a strong foundation for development and creation of 
high-quality IP that appear to be in decline. Moreover, at Tsuburaya 
Productions Co., Ltd., we are promoting various initiatives aimed at 
activating our IP, including release of new movies and plans for an 
Ultraman Series 45th Anniversary.

For its part, Digital Frontier Inc. has been expanding its business by 
making use of its high-level visual effects (VFX) technologies, in addition 
to producing CG for video games and pachinko/pachislot machines. For 
example, Digital Frontier Inc. produced VFX for the movie “GANTZ,” 
which debuted in January 2011.

Lucent Pictures Entertainment, Inc. has also been working on a new 
production, while using its 3D video technologies to further develop links 
with partners in Japan and overseas.

As a result, the Other Field recorded net sales of ¥5,881 million, a 
year-on-year increase of 849.7%, and operating income of ¥315 million, 
compared with an operating loss of ¥70 million in the previous fiscal year.

Other Income (Expenses) and Net Income
In other income (expenses) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, 
the Company recorded equity in earnings of affiliates, which outweighed 
a provision of allowance for doubtful accounts. This resulted in net other 
income of ¥274 million, compared with net other expenses of ¥906 
million in the previous fiscal year.

Income before income taxes and minority interests was ¥13,410 
million, up 85.8% from the previous fiscal year. Net income was ¥7,520 
million, an increase of 128.6% from the previous fiscal year.

Dividends
Fields considers improving corporate value to be a crucial management 
issue, and makes the appropriate return of profit to shareholders com-
mensurate with profit realized a basic policy. Dividend amounts are 
determined in consideration of factors such as the Company’s cash flow 
situation, but in general the standard we aim for is a consolidated payout 
ratio of 20% or higher.

With regard to internal reserves, our policy is to use them effectively 
in investments intended to strengthen the Company’s financial position 
and management base and ensure continued business expansion and 
competitiveness.

The dividend applicable to the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 was 
¥5,000 per share, consisting of an interim dividend of ¥2,500, repre-
senting an increase of ¥500 year on year, and a year-end dividend of 
¥2,500. The consolidated payout ratio was 22.1%.

Dividend per Share

(Yen) 03/10 03/11

Interim dividend 2,000 2,500

Year-end dividend 2,500 2,500

Annual dividend 4,500 5,000

Payout ratio 45.9% 22.1%
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Cash Flows From Operating Activities

 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

	 Cash flows from operating activities (millions of yen) 	 Cash flows from investing activities (millions of yen) 	 Cash flows from financing activities (millions of yen)

Financial
Assets
Current assets at March 31, 2011 amounted to ¥51,051 million, down 
¥5,643 million from March 31, 2010. This was mainly attributable to a 
decline in notes and accounts receivable—trade associated with the sale 
of pachislot machines.

Property and equipment, net amounted to ¥10,089 million, an 
increase of ¥368 million from March 31, 2010. This primarily reflected 
assets acquired from the inclusion of Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd. 
and Digital Frontier Inc. within the scope of consolidation.

Total investments and other assets amounted to ¥17,830 million, up 
¥2,919 million from March 31, 2010. Growth was mainly attributable to 
an increase in goodwill accompanying new consolidations and the pur-
chase of investment securities.

As a result of the above, total assets at March 31, 2011 amounted to 
¥78,971 million, down ¥2,357 million year on year.

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities decreased ¥8,258 million year on year, to ¥27,587 
million. This primarily reflected decreases in notes and accounts 
payable—trade associated with sales of machines.

Total long-term liabilities amounted to ¥4,362 million, an increase of 
¥66 million from March 31, 2010. This was mainly attributable to an 
increase in asset retirement obligations accompanying the application of 
a new accounting standard and the redemption of corporate bonds.

Net assets amounted to ¥47,021 million, up ¥5,834 million from 
March 31, 2010. This primarily reflected an increase in retained earnings.

As a result of the above, total liabilities and net assets at March 31, 
2011 amounted to ¥78,971 million, down ¥2,357 million from March 
31, 2010.

Fund Procurement
The Group is actively seeking to expand its business fields. However, 
positioning growth founded on stability as its basic capital policy, the 
Company continues to maintain its financial condition without relying 
on borrowings.

In order to procure funds efficiently when they are needed, the 
Group has concluded overdraft agreements with four banks with which 
it does business. Based on these agreements, as of March 31, 2011, 
the total overdraft limit and the balance of untapped loans amounted to 
¥17,015 million.

Cash Flows
The balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end of March 31, 2011 
was ¥15,632 million, a decrease of ¥274 million from the end of the 
previous fiscal year.

Cash flows and factors affecting them were as follows.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to ¥8,005 million, 
compared with ¥8,429 million in the previous fiscal year. The principal 
factors were ¥13,410 million in income before income taxes and minority 
interests, a decrease of ¥4,907 million in notes and accounts 
receivable—trade, a decrease of ¥9,155 million in accounts payable—
trade, and ¥5,258 million in income taxes paid.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Net cash used in investing activities amounted to ¥4,356 million, com-
pared with ¥1,011 million in the previous fiscal year. The principal 
factors were outflows of ¥2,191 million for payment for purchase of 
newly consolidated subsidiaries’ stocks, purchases of intangible assets 
totaling ¥1,008 million and purchases of property and equipment total-
ing ¥482 million.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net cash used in financing activities amounted to ¥3,915 million, com-
pared with ¥2,687 million in the previous fiscal year. The principal fac-
tors were cash dividends paid totaling ¥1,657 million, outflows of ¥1,209 
million for net decrease in short-term bank loans, and ¥877 million in 
redemption of corporate bonds.
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Future Outlook
In striving to realize its corporate philosophy—“The Greatest Leisure for 
All People”—the Company has positioned multi-purpose use of IP at the 
core of its strategy for building competitive strength as a corporation. 
Accordingly, we promote a diverse content business, harnessing syner-
gies from multiple use of content across a wide range of entertainment 
fields, including pachinko/pachislot, mobile, sports, video, publishing 
and animation.

In the pachinko/pachislot business we are engaged in basic research 
that will help to strengthen our planning and development capabilities. 
The ultimate goal of these efforts is to create products using content that 
can be enjoyed by as many people as possible, and that will attract 
existing fans and new customers alike. In our research we seek to tap 
the deeper levels of the Japanese psyche as the well-spring of popular 
culture, and we are focusing in particular on “Heroes,” which have an 
extremely powerful affinity to pachinko/pachislot. We see this research as 
an essential part of creating high-value-added products. In this way we 
are conducting quality planning and development that compares favor-
ably with other forms of entertainment.

In the area of online services, including mobile, which is our second 
vector for growth, we have taken several measures to increase paid 
membership in Fields Mobile. These included developing new services 
to achieve cross-media usage for the Pachinko/Pachislot (PS) Field and 
Mobile Field, a stronger response to the next-generation mobile device 
market, including smartphones, and establishing joint ventures to plan 
and produce digital content using diverse IP. Looking ahead, we will 
continue to strengthen these activities to achieve steady results, and to 
develop new business pillars that will join pachinko/pachislot in the 
future.

Moreover, we will capture new business opportunities in other enter-
tainment fields, including video, publishing, and animation, by utilizing 
content that suits the characteristics of each media type.

As a medium- to long-term strategy, in April 2008, the Group 
announced a medium-term management plan, with the goals of creating 
new leisure businesses and realizing a vision for the Group 10 years 
down the road. In line with this plan, the Group is pursuing a variety of 
measures with the aim of achieving consolidated operating income of 
over ¥25.0 billion in the fiscal year ending March 31, 2014.

(For a detailed discussion of future prospects, refer to pages 9, 12 and 13.)

Outlook for the Year Ending March 31, 2012
In accordance with its medium-term management plan, the Company 
has pursued steps to bolster its hand in the planning and development 
domains of the Pachinko/pachislot Business, as well as strengthen 
foundations for earnings expansion in its Group Business. As part of 
these efforts, in April 2011, the Company established a new Contents 
Division to reinforce IP strategies that will support medium- to long-
term growth.

In the Pachinko/pachislot Business, there is some concern over the 
impact of the Great East Japan Earthquake on pachinko halls in the year 
ending March 2012. Furthermore, actual production and shipments 
among some pachinko/pachislot machine manufacturers are expected to 
deviate from initial plans due to component shortages and other factors. 
This situation will require a flexible response and careful consideration of 
the timing of product releases. Naturally, the Company and its partner 
manufacturers moved immediately following the disaster to devise a 
number of response measures, including securing necessary compo-
nents. A structure was also put in place for launching the sale of multiple 
new products during the year, along with plans to announce ambitious 
major titles. In the Group Business, in line with business schemes for the 
creation of high-valued-added content, the Company is making steady 
strides in driving forward new growth centered on its content business. 
At the same time, we are aiming to contribute to earnings through 
aggressive business development.

In light of the above, we are forecasting the following results for the 
fiscal year ending March 31, 2012: net sales of ¥100,000 million, a 
decrease of 3.5%; operating income of ¥14,000 million, an increase of 
6.6%; and net income of ¥8,000 million, an increase of 6.4%. We plan 
to pay a dividend of ¥5,000 per share, the same as for the year ended 
March 31, 2011, and hope to contribute more to the return of profits to 
shareholders through additional growth.

Results Forecast for the Year Ending March 31, 2012

(Millions of yen) 03/11 (actual) 03/12 (forecast) Change

Net Sales 103,593 100,000 –3.5%

Operating Income 13,136 14,000 +6.6%

Net Income 7,520 8,000 +6.4%

(Yen)

Dividend Per Share 5,000 5,000 —
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Risks Related to Our Business and Status of Management
Various risks that may substantially affect decisions by potential investors 
are as follows.

Forward-looking statements are based on the judgment of Group 
management as of the end of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011.

Content Business
The Company is focusing on obtaining IP rights or merchandising rights 
and developing content with high value. However, the distinctive nature 
of the content business makes it difficult to accurately evaluate its poten-
tial for contributing to profits. Specifically, due to the following potential 
risks related to content, the Company may not achieve the business 
growth it currently projects. Directing significant funds into the content 
business might result in increased fixed costs and overall financial risk 
for the Company. Also, investment in rights or usage rights may not lead 
to the development of content with high value. The Company may not be 
able to acquire attractive content on favorable terms due to fierce com-
petition in the market. In implementing its content strategy and related 
activities, the Company may unknowingly infringe upon the IP rights of 
other companies or become party to other claims associated with these 
IP rights. In addition, the Company, in turn, may not be able to effectively 
protect its own content-related IP rights.

Through education and training, the Company is reducing risk by 
raising awareness regarding IP. At the same time, in order to raise the 
potential to contribute to earnings, the Company is establishing business 
schemes for the creation and ownership of content with higher value 
within the Group.

High Level of Products Supplied by a Specific Supplier
The Group sales primarily consist of product sales (distribution sales) in 
which the Group purchases machines and sells them to customers, and 
sales commissions (agency sales) in which the Company receives com-
missions from the brokerage of machine sales. Of the total consolidated 
net sales of the Company, product sales and sales commissions repre-
sented 65.8% and 23.0%, respectively, for the fiscal year ended March 
31, 2010, and 72.1% and 12.7%, respectively, for the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2011. The major portion of products sold was supplied by 
Rodeo Co., Ltd. and Bisty Co., Ltd., an allied manufacturer. In the fiscal 
year ended March 31, 2011, products supplied by Rodeo Co., Ltd. and 
Bisty Co., Ltd. accounted for 47.2% and 24.3%, respectively, of the total 
products we purchased on a consolidated basis. Given the heavy reli-
ance of the Company in the Pachinko/Pachislot (PS) Field on these two 
companies for product supply, should products from these companies 
become less popular or the launch of new products be delayed due to 
product development falling behind schedule or other reasons, the 
results of operations of the Company or the Group could be affected.

Our Basic Exclusive Distributorship Agreement is renewable on an 
annual basis with Rodeo Co., Ltd. and a triennial basis with Bisty Co., 
Ltd. Therefore, should the Agreements not be renewed, Group results 
could be affected. The Company maintains alliances with Rodeo Co., 
Ltd., a member of the Sammy Group, and Bisty Co., Ltd., a member of 
the SANKYO Group. It also began an alliance with KYORAKU SANGYO 
in February 2008. These alliances are part of the Company’s efforts to 
reduce its dependence on a specific supplier and diversify risk, as well 
as to strengthen its product lineup and bring products to market quicker.

Legal and Voluntary Regulations Governing the Pachinko/pachislot 

Machine Industry
The pachinko/pachislot machine sales business in which the Company 
is primarily engaged is not directly subject to laws and regulations. How-
ever, business activities by pachinko/pachislot machine manufacturers 
are regulated by rules prescribed by the National Public Safety Commis-
sion, the Rules on Approval of Pachinko/Pachislot Machines and Certifi-
cation of Models, in accordance with the Entertainment Business Law. 
For example, the Company cannot sell or install any machines that have 
not obtained the approval of the Public Safety Commission of the related 
prefecture. The business activities of pachinko hall operators, the final 
users of our machines, are also regulated under the Entertainment 
Business Law and related ordinances in each prefecture.

Apart from these regulations, the pachinko/pachislot industry may, as 
necessary, voluntarily regulate the operations of pachinko/pachislot 
machine manufacturers, pachinko hall operators, and sales companies 
to restrain the excessive gambling nature of the games.

Any amendments to laws and regulations or the introduction of new 
voluntary regulations may delay the delivery of pachinko/pachislot 
machines to pachinko halls due to the need to comply with such new 
requirements, and any change in demand for specific machines by 
pachinko hall operators could affect the results of Group operations.

The Company continues to contribute to the soundness of the 
pachinko/pachislot market based on its corporate philosophy of provid-
ing “The Greatest Leisure for All People.” It is working to plan and 
develop new machines with high gaming and entertainment value that 
do not rely on gambling appeal. Furthermore, aiming to secure new 
sources of income, the Company is expanding in diverse fields of enter-
tainment, ranging from movies, mobile content, animation, and publish-
ing to sports. It is advancing digital content in multiple directions to 
create more opportunities to generate earnings.

Risk Associated with Investment
The Company conducts its business in broad areas, including those 
that are not directly related to the pachinko/pachislot machines sales 
business. In developing business for the Group, the Group strives to 
expand existing ventures, enhance functions, and enter new business 
areas by strengthening and creating alliances with Group companies 
and other partners. To that end, we conduct such investment activities 
as establishing new ventures in partnership with other companies and 
investing in existing companies. We will continue investment activities 
going forward.

However, a decline in the investment value of companies or in the 
market value of shares in which the Company has invested may result in 
losing all or part of the investment value or require the provision of addi-
tional funding to these companies. The results of operations of the Com-
pany or the Group may be affected by either of these eventualities.

The Company reduces risk by periodically checking whether to make 
investments or extend finance, or exit investments in accordance with 
the Group’s management policy. In fact, in the fiscal year ended March 
31, 2009 the Company realigned businesses in line with this policy. It 
also established a department responsible for internal control systems for 
the Group. This department is working to strengthen internal control 
systems for each Group company.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 
At March 31, 2010 and 2011

Millions of Yen

Thousands of  
U.S. Dollars  

(Note 1)

Assets 2010 2011 2011

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ¥15,906 ¥15,632 $187,997

Notes and accounts receivable — trade 33,088 27,948 336,115

Inventories 1,519 1,357 16,319

Merchandising right advances 2,838 2,067 24,858

Deferred tax assets 807 1,249 15,021

Other current assets 2,887 2,995 36,019

Allowance for doubtful accounts (355) (200) (2,405)

Total current assets 56,694 51,051 613,962

Property and equipment:

Land 6,170 6,324 76,055

Buildings and structures 4,349 5,478 65,880

Tools and furniture 2,414 3,097 37,245

Machinery and vehicles 47 92 1,106

Construction in progress 18 34 408

Total 12,998 15,025 180,697

Less: Accumulated depreciation (3,277) (4,937) (59,374)

Property and equipment, net 9,721 10,089 121,334

Investments and other assets:

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates 1,598 2,208 26,554

Investment securities 6,267 6,258 75,261

Goodwill 239 2,801 33,686

Deferred tax assets 1,124 942 11,328

Other assets 5,796 6,094 73,289

Allowance for doubtful accounts (114) (475) (5,712)

Total investments and other assets 14,911 17,830 214,431

Total assets ¥81,329 ¥78,971 $949,741

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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Millions of Yen

Thousands of  
U.S. Dollars  

(Note 1)

Liabilities and Net Assets 2010 2011 2011

Current liabilities:

Notes and accounts payable — trade ¥26,610 ¥17,939 $215,742

Short-term bank loans — 85 1,022

Current portion of long-term debt 720 784 9,428

Income taxes payable 3,562 4,217 50,715

Accrued bonuses 273 312 3,752

Accrued bonuses to directors and corporate auditors 135 220 2,645

Other current liabilities 4,542 4,028 48,442

Total current liabilities 35,845 27,587 331,773

Long-term liabilities:

Long-term debt, less current portion 1,510 965 11,605

Retirement benefits 274 339 4,076

Other long-term liabilities 2,511 3,058 36,776

Total long-term liabilities 4,295 4,362 52,459

Net assets:

Common stock

Authorized;	 1,388,000 shares at March 31, 2010 and 2011

Issued;	 347,000 shares at March 31, 2010 and 2011 7,948 7,948 95,586

Capital surplus

Additional paid-in capital 7,994 7,994 96,139

Retained earnings 27,583 33,443 402,200

Treasury stock;	 14,885 shares at March 31, 2010 and 2011 (1,785) (1,785) (21,467)

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities (676) (822) (9,885)

Foreign currency translation adjustments 0 0 0

Total accumulated other comprehensive income (676) (821) (9,873)

Minority interests 122 242 2,910

Total net assets 41,187 47,021 565,496

Total liabilities and net assets ¥81,329 ¥78,971 $949,741
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Consolidated Statements of Income
For the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2011

Millions of Yen

Thousands of  
U.S. Dollars  

(Note 1)

2010 2011 2011

Net sales ¥  66,342 ¥   103,593 $1,245,856

Cost of sales 39,452 68,464 823,379

Gross profit 26,889 35,129 422,477

Selling, general and administrative expenses 18,764 21,993 264,497

Operating income 8,124 13,136 157,979

Other income (expenses):

Interest and dividend income 175 179 2,152

Interest expenses (24) (20) (240)

Equity in earnings (losses) of affiliates (258) 552 6,638

Impairment losses (18) (44) (529)

Effect of adopting Accounting Standard for Asset Retirement Obligations — (142) (1,707)

Foreign exchange loss, net (46) (18) (216)

Other, net (735) (233) (2,802)

Other income (expenses), net (906) 274 3,295

Income before income taxes and minority interests 7,218 13,410 161,274

Income taxes:

Current 3,616 5,933 71,352

Deferred 284 (49) (589)

Total income taxes 3,900 5,883 70,751

Income before minority interests 3,318 7,527 90,523

Minority interests 29 6 72

Net income ¥    3,289 ¥       7,520 $     90,438

Yen
U.S. Dollars  

(Note 1)

Earnings per share

  Basic earnings per share ¥9,796.56 ¥22,643.86 $     272.33
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Fields Corporation   Annual Report 2011

48

Fields Corporation   Annual Report 2011



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended March 31, 2011

Millions of Yen

Thousands of  
U.S. Dollars  

(Note 1)

2011 2011

Income before minority interests ¥7,527 $90,523

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Net unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities (145) (1,743)

Foreign currency translation adjustments 0 0

Share of other comprehensive income in affiliates accounted for by the equity method 0 0

Total other comprehensive income (144) (1,731)

Comprehensive income 7,382 88,779

Attributable to:

Shareholders of FIELDS CORPORATION 7,375 88,695

Minority interests 6 72

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
For the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2011

Shares Millions of Yen

Other comprehensive  
income

Number of 
Shares of 
Common 

Stock Issued
Common 

Stock

Additional 
Paid‑in 
Capital

Retained 
Earnings

Treasury 
Stock

Unrealized 
Loss on 

Available- 
for‑sale 

Securities

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Adjustments

Minority 
Interests

Total 
Net Assets

Balance at April 1, 2009 347,000 ¥7,948 ¥7,994 ¥25,808 ¥(1,330) ¥(956) ¥(0) ¥  32 ¥39,496

Net income — — — 3,289 — — — — 3,289

Cash dividends paid — — — (1,513) — — — — (1,513)

Purchase of treasury stock — — — — (454) — — — (454)

Net change of item other than  
shareholders’ equity — — — — — 280 0 89 369

Balance at March 31, 2010 347,000 7,948 7,994 27,583 (1,785) (676) 0 122 41,187

Net income — — — 7,520 — — — — 7,520

Cash dividends paid — — — (1,660) — — — — (1,660)

Net change of item other than  
shareholders’ equity — — — — — (145) 0 119 (25)

Balance at March 31, 2011 347,000 ¥7,948 ¥7,994 ¥33,443 ¥(1,785) ¥(822) ¥ 0 ¥242 ¥47,021

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

Other comprehensive  
income

Common 
Stock

Additional 
Paid‑in 
Capital

Retained 
Earnings

Treasury 
Stock

Unrealized 
Loss on 

Available- 
for‑sale 

Securities

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Adjustments

Minority 
Interests

Total 
Net Assets

Balance at March 31, 2010 $95,586 $96,139 $331,725 $(21,467) $(8,129) $0 $1,467 $495,333

Net income — — 90,438 — — — — 90,438

Cash dividends paid — — (19,963) — — — — (19,963)

Net change of item other than  
shareholders’ equity — — — — (1,743) 0 1,431 (300)

Balance at March 31, 2011 $95,586 $96,139 $402,200 $(21,467) $(9,885) $0 $2,910 $565,496

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2011

Millions of Yen

Thousands of  
U.S. Dollars  

(Note 1)

2010 2011 2011

Operating activities:

Income before income taxes and minority interests ¥   7,218 ¥13,410 $ 161,274

Adjustments:

Depreciation and amortization 1,368 1,734 20,853

Impairment losses 18 44 529

Amortization of goodwill 87 507 6,097

Equity in losses (earnings) of affiliates 258 (552) (6,638)

Notes and accounts receivable — trade (27,896) 4,907 59,013

Accounts payable — trade 23,910 (9,155) (110,102)

Deposit received (1,278) (76) (914)

Effect of adopting Accounting Standard for Asset Retirement Obligations — 142 1,707

Other 2,138 2,138 25,712

Subtotal 5,829 13,102 157,570

Interest and dividends received 183 186 2,236

Interest paid (27) (25) (300)

Income taxes refunded (paid) 2,443 (5,258) (63,235)

Net cash provided by operating activities 8,429 8,005 96,271

Investing activities:

Purchases of property and equipment (470) (482) (5,796)

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 615 — —

Purchases of intangible assets (449) (1,008) (12,122)

Purchases of investment securities — (366) (4,401)

Additional investments in affiliates (3) (315) (3,788)

Proceeds from sales of shares of affiliates — 200 2,405

Payment for purchase of newly consolidated subsidiaries’ stocks — (2,191) (26,349)

Increase in investments in various partnerships (366) (155) (1,864)

Increase in loans receivable (357) (243) (2,922)

Other 21 205 2,465

Net cash used in investing activities� (1,011) (4,356) (52,387)

Financing activities:

Decrease in short-term bank loans, net — (1,209) (14,539)

Repayments of long-term debt (781) (940) (11,304)

Cash dividends paid (1,511) (1,657) (19,927)

Purchase of treasury stock (456) — —

Other 60 (108) (1,298)

Net cash used in financing activities (2,687) (3,915) (47,083)

Foreign currency translation adjustments on cash and cash equivalents (4) (7) (84)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,725 (274) (3,295)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 11,181 15,906 191,292

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ¥ 15,906 ¥15,632 $ 187,997

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Basis of Presenting Consolidated Financial Statements

FIELDS CORPORATION (the “Company”) and its consolidated subsid-
iaries maintain their accounts and records in accordance with accounting 
principles and practices generally accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”), 
which are different from International Financial Reporting Standards or 
accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
as to accounting and disclosure requirements.

Effective from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, a consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income has been disclosed. In relation to 
this change in the disclosure requirement under Japanese GAAP, accu-
mulated other comprehensive income is presented in the consolidated 
balance sheets and the consolidated statements of changes in net assets. 
Other comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2010 is 
disclosed in Note 17.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are translated 
into English from the consolidated financial statements issued domesti-
cally in Japan. Certain modifications and reclassifications have been made 
for the convenience of readers unfamiliar with Japanese GAAP presenta-
tion rules and methods. In addition, certain rearrangements have been 
made to the 2010 consolidated financial statements to conform to the 
classifications used in 2011.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen. The 
translations of the Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are 
included solely for the convenience of readers, using the prevailing 
exchange rate at March 31, 2011, which is ¥83.15 to U.S. $1.00. The 
convenience translations should not be construed as representations that 
the Japanese yen amounts have been, could have been, or could in the 
future be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

The Japanese yen amounts in millions are rounded down to the 
nearest million, by which the translations into U.S. dollar amounts are 
computed. U.S. dollar amounts in thousands are also rounded down to 
the nearest thousand.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the 

accounts of the Company and significant subsidiaries (collectively, the 
“Group”) that are controlled by the Company. Under the effective control 
approach, all majority-owned companies and companies effectively con-
trolled by the Company are consolidated. Additionally, those companies 
over which the Company is able to directly or indirectly exercise control 
are to be consolidated even if the holding ratio equals to 50% or less.

All significant inter-company balances and transactions are eliminated 
in consolidation. All material unrealized profit included in assets resulting 
from transactions within the Group is eliminated. In the elimination of 
investments in subsidiaries, the assets and liabilities, including the portion 
attributing to minority interests, are evaluated using the fair value at the 
time the Company acquired controls over the respective subsidiaries. For 
consolidated subsidiaries or affiliates whose closing dates are different 
from that of the Company, certain adjustments necessary for consolidation 
have been made.

The difference between total acquisition costs and underlying fair value 
of the acquired company is recognized as goodwill, and is amortized on a 
straight-line basis over an estimated period of no more than ten years.

Under the control concept, companies over which the Company has 
the ability to exercise significant influence through investment, personnel, 

financing, technology, or other relationships are accounted for under the 
equity method. Investments in companies other than those consolidated 
or accounted for under the equity method are accounted for under the 
cost method. If the equity method had been applied to the investments in 
those companies, the effect on the consolidated financial statements 
would not have been significant.

Scope of Consolidation and Application of the Equity Method
Number of consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates at March 31, 2010 

and 2011 is as follows:

Number of Companies

2010 2011

Consolidated subsidiaries 11 14
Unconsolidated subsidiaries not accounted for 
under the equity method 1 2
Affiliates accounted for under the equity  
method 5 6

Affiliates not accounted for under the equity 
method 2 1

The consolidated subsidiaries and holding ratio of the Company at 
March 31, 2010 and 2011 are as follows:

Holding ratio (indirectly owned)

2010 2011

Fields Jr. Corporation 100.0% 100.0%

F Corporation 100.0 100.0

MICROCABIN CORP. — 85.0

Shin-Nichi Technology Co., Ltd. 100.0 100.0

FutureScope Corporation 83.3 83.3

IP Bros. Incorporated — 85.0

Japan Sports Marketing Inc. 61.8 61.8

Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd. — 51.0

Digital Frontier Inc. — 86.9

Lucent Pictures Entertainment, Inc. 90.0 90.0

GEMBA Inc. — 73.9

Haruki Fields Cinema Fund 90.0 —

EXPRESS Inc. 80.0 80.0

Ildel Corporation 60.0 —

K-1 INTERNATIONAL Corporation 85.7 85.7

JSM HAWAII, LLC 61.8 (61.8) 61.8 (61.8)

(Note):
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, the Company acquired 

majority shareholdings of Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd. (“Tsuburaya”), 
MICROCABIN CORP. (“MICROCABIN”), and Digital Frontier Inc. (“DF”) 
with its subsidiary GEMBA Inc. (“GEMBA”). As a result, these four compa-
nies became consolidated subsidiaries of the Company.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, IP Bros. Incorporated was 
newly established and have been included in the scope of consolidation.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, Ildel Corporation was 
liquidated and excluded from the scope of consolidation.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, Haruki Fields Cinema 
Fund was dissolved and excluded from the scope of consolidation.

The following tables summarize payments for purchase of newly con-
solidated subsidiaries’ stocks and fair value of assets and liabilities at the 
time of initiating consolidation:
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(Tsuburaya)

As of March 31, 2010 Millions of Yen
Thousands of 

U.S. Dollars

Current assets ¥   (611) $  (7,348)

Non-current assets (456) (5,484)

Goodwill (2,055) (24,714)

Current liabilities 1,919 23,078

Long-term liabilities 112 1,346

Acquisition cost (1,091) (13,120)

 � Cash and cash equivalents held  
by Tsuburaya 53 637

Payment for purchase of newly consolidated 
subsidiary’s stocks ¥(1,037) $(12,471)

(DF, including GEMBA)

As of March 31, 2010 Millions of Yen
Thousands of 

U.S. Dollars

Current assets ¥(423) $(5,087)

Non-current assets (181) (2,176)

Goodwill (579) (6,963)

Current liabilities 509 6,121

Long-term liabilities 1 12

Minority interests 24 288

Acquisition cost (650) (7,817)

  Cash and cash equivalents held by DF 37 444

Payment for purchase of newly consolidated 
subsidiary’s stocks ¥(612) $(7,360)

(MICROCABIN)

As of March 31, 2010 Millions of Yen
Thousands of 

U.S. Dollars

Current assets ¥(535) $(6,434)

Non-current assets (319) (3,836)

Goodwill (338) (4,064)

Current liabilities 204 2,453

Long-term liabilities 159 1,912

Minority interests 73 877

Acquisition cost (756) (9,092)

 � Cash and cash equivalents held  
by MICROCABIN 214 2,573

Payment for purchase of newly consolidated 
subsidiary’s stocks ¥(541) $(6,506)

In March 2008, the Accounting Standards Board of Japan (the 
“ASBJ”) issued ASBJ Statement No. 16, “Accounting Standard for Equity 
Method of Accounting for Investments” and ASBJ Practical Issues Task 
Force No. 24, “Practical Solution on Unification of Accounting Policies 
Applied to Associates Accounted for Using the Equity Method”. The Com-
pany adopted these accounting standards effective from the fiscal year 
ended March 31, 2011. This accounting change did not have any effect 
on the consolidated financial statements.

Business Combination
In December 2008, the ASBJ revised ASBJ Statement No. 21, 

“Accounting Standard for Business Combinations”, ASBJ Statement No. 
7, “Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures”, and ASBJ Guidance 
No. 10, “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Business Combinations 
and Business Divestitures”. The Company adopted these revised stan-
dards effective from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011. Under the 
revised accounting standards, business combinations must be accounted 
only by the purchase method.

Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents are defined as low-risk, highly-liquid, short-term 

investments with an initial maturity of three months or less that are readily 
convertible to cash.

Valuation of Inventories
Inventories are stated at cost, determined by the following methods:

Merchandise The Company Used Machine: the specific 
identification method
Other: the moving-average 
method

Consolidated 
subsidiaries

the gross-average method

Work in process Consolidated 
subsidiaries

the specific identification method

Raw material Consolidated 
subsidiaries

the moving-average method

Supplies The Company 
and consolidated 
subsidiaries

the last purchase price method

If acquisition cost of an inventory exceeds its net selling value, the 
carrying amount of such inventory would be written down to its net selling 
value and the difference would be charged to income.

Investment Securities
Investment securities are classified and accounted for, depending on 

management’s intent, as follows: (1) held-to-maturity securities, which are 
expected to be held to maturity with a positive intent and an ability to hold 
to maturity are reported at amortized cost; and (2) available-for-sale 
securities are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net 
of applicable taxes, reported in a separate component of net assets. 
Available-for-sale securities whose fair value is not readily determinable 
are stated at cost determined by the moving-average method.

For other than temporary declines in fair value, investment securities 
are reduced to net realizable value and charged to income.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost determined principally by 

the declining-balance method.

The range of useful lives of depreciable assets at March 31, 2010 and 
2011 are as follows:

2010 2011

Buildings and structures 8 – 50 years 8 – 50 years

Tools and furniture 2 – 20 2 – 20

Machinery and vehicles 6 5 – 20

The accounting standard for impairment of fixed assets requires an 
entity to review its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or 
asset group may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized if 
the carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of the 
undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the continued use 
and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. The impairment loss 
is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset 
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the discounted 
future cash flows from the continued use and eventual disposition of the 
asset or the net selling price at disposition. Acquisition costs of impaired 
long-lived assets are directly deducted in recognizing impairment losses.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets primarily consist of computer software. Software for 

internal use is amortized over a period of no more than five years by the 
straight-line method.
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided at amount based on 

past collection experience and evaluation of potential losses in the 
receivables outstanding.

Accrued Bonuses
Bonuses to employees are accrued at the estimated amount which the 

Group is obligated to pay to employees after the balance sheet date, 
based on services provided during the period.

Bonuses to Directors and Corporate Auditors
Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors are accrued at the year 

end to which such bonuses are attributable.

Retirement Benefits
The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries have an unfunded 

defined benefit retirement plan with lump-sum payments. Reserve for 
retirement benefit obligations is provided based on the projected benefit 
obligation. The obligation is calculated in accordance with a formula 
which has, as its variables, the length of service and basic pay rate at the 
end of the fiscal year. Actuarial differences are amortized by the straight-
line method using the specific number of years (five years) less than the 
average remaining service period. Certain subsidiaries adopt the simplified 
method for calculating projected benefit obligation.

Certain other consolidated subsidiary participates in a multi-employer 
contributory defined benefit welfare pension plan (the “welfare pension 
plan”), which includes the substitution portion of the pension obligations 
and related assets. Contributions made by the consolidated subsidiary to 
the welfare pension plans are expensed when paid because the plan 
assets attributable to each participant cannot be reasonably determined.

Translation of Foreign Currencies
Current and non-current monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 

foreign currencies are translated into yen at the exchange rates at the 
balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising from translation are charge 
to income in the year they incurred.

The Company translates the revenue and expense accounts of the over-
seas consolidated subsidiaries at the average rates of exchange of the year. 
The balance sheet accounts, except for net assets account, are translated 
into yen at the exchange rates of the balance sheet date. Net asset accounts 
are translated at their historical exchange rates. The differences arising from 
translations are included in foreign currency translation adjustments.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Accounting
Japanese GAAP for derivative financial instruments:

Derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value and changes in 
fair value are recognized as gains or losses. If derivative financial instru-
ments are used as hedges and meet certain hedging criteria, a company 
defers recognition of gains or losses resulting from changes in fair value of 
derivative financial instruments until the related gains or losses on the 
hedged items are realized.

Companies’ management policy for derivative transactions:
The Company utilizes financial instruments with embedded derivative 

instruments for effective use of surplus fund. The Company does not enter 
into derivative transactions unless they are considered secure with low 
risks underlying. The Group does not enter into derivative transactions for 
speculative purposes.

Risk management for derivative transactions:
The Group enters into the derivative transactions only with major financial 

institutions with favorable credit ratings, thereby reducing credit risk exposure 
for non-performance. The finance and budget department is engaged in 
managing derivative transactions. All of derivative transactions are executed, 
monitored, and managed in accordance with internal authorization policies.

Asset Retirement Obligations
Effective from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, the Company 

adopted ASBJ Statement No. 18, “Accounting Standard for Asset Retire-
ment Obligations” and ASBJ Guidance No. 21, “Guidance on Accounting 
Standard for Asset Retirement Obligations”. The accounting standard 
requires legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived 
assets to be recognized as the sum of the discounted cash flows required 
for future asset retirement at the time that the obligations are incurred. If 
the asset retirement obligation cannot be reasonably estimated, such 
obligation should be recognized as a liability in the period when it 
becomes reasonably estimated. Upon initial recognition of a liability, the 
cost is capitalized as part of the related long-lived assets and depreciated 
over the remaining estimated useful life of the related asset.

The effect of adopting this accounting standard was to decrease oper-
ating income and income before income taxes and minority interests by 
¥30 million ($360 thousand) and ¥173 million ($2,080 thousand), 
respectively. Change in the balance of asset retirement obligations by 
adopting the accounting standard was ¥288 million ($3,463 thousand). 
The balance of asset retirement obligations as of March 31, 2011 is 
included in other current liabilities and other long-term liabilities in the 
consolidated balance sheet.

Income Taxes
The asset and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax 

assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of tempo-
rary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets 
and liabilities. Deferred taxes are determined by applying currently 
enacted tax laws to the temporary differences. Change in the statutory tax 
rate is recognized as income or loss in the period the new tax rate is 
enacted. A valuation allowance is provided for deferred tax assets when 
considered tax benefit would not be realized.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue of the Group primary consists of merchandise sales and 

agency services.

For merchandise sales:
The Group purchases Pachislot machines from manufactures and sells 

them to Pachislot halls. The Group recognizes revenue when merchan-
dises are shipped to the halls.

For agency services:
The Groups act as an agent between manufactures and Pachinko halls 

to provide various services related to the distribution of Pachinko and 
Pachislot machine. The Group receives commissions from the manufac-
turers for this agency service. The services are completed when the 
Group collects sales proceeds from Pachinko halls, and remit the pro-
ceeds to the manufacturers. The Group recognizes revenue when ser-
vices are completed.

Leases
In March 2007, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 13, “Accounting 

Standard for Lease Transactions”, which revised the previous accounting 
standard for lease transactions issued in June 1993. The revised account-
ing standard for lease transactions is effective for fiscal years beginning on 
or after April 1, 2008.

Under the previous accounting standard, finance leases that deemed 
to transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee were to be 
capitalized; however, other finance leases were permitted to be accounted 
for as operating lease transactions if certain “as if capitalized” information 
is disclosed in the notes to the lessee’s financial statements. The revised 
accounting standard requires that all finance lease transactions be capi-
talized recognizing lease assets and lease obligations in the balance sheet. 
In addition, the revised accounting standard permits leases which existed 
at the transition date and do not transfer ownership of the leased property 
to the lessee to be accounted for as operating lease transactions.
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The Company adopted this revised accounting standard as of April 1, 
2008, applying the permission discussed above to leases which existed at 
the transition date and do not transfer ownership of the leased property to 
the lessee.

Stock and Bond Issuance Costs
Stock and bond issuance costs are expensed as incurred.

Founding Costs
Founding costs are expensed as incurred.

Consumption Tax
Consumption tax is imposed at the flat rate of five percent on all 

domestic consumption of goods and services (with certain exemptions). 
The consumption tax imposed on the Group’s sales to customers is with-
held by the customers at the time of sale and is subsequently paid to the 
national government. Consumption tax withheld upon sale is not included 
in “Sales” and consumption tax payable by the Group on the purchases of 
goods and services from vendors is not included in “Costs and Expenses”. 
The net balance of consumption tax withheld and payable is included in 
“Other current assets” or “Other current liabilities” in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets.

Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)
Basic EPS is computed based on the average number of shares of 

common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS reflects all of 
the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to 
issue common stock were exercised.

Diluted EPS for the year ended March 31, 2010 and 2011 is not pre-
sented because the Company did not have any kind of securities with 
potential dilutive effect.

Use of Estimates
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include amounts 

based on certain estimates and assumptions. The actual results could 
differ from those estimates and assumptions.

3. Business Combinations

Acquisition of shares of Tsuburaya
On April 2, 2010, the Company acquired a 51.0% ownership of Tsuburaya. 

Tsuburaya’s main businesses are planning and production of movie and TV 
content, and planning, production and sales of character goods. The Company 
intends active use of the Tsuburaya’s intellectual properties for; (1) character-
merchandising and amusement-machine fields, (2) multi-use synergies, (3) 
improving the Group’s intellectual properties by development of movies and 
new lines of products, and (4) advancing into global market. The Company 
believes that Tsuburaya’s intellectual properties which have great value in wide 
areas will bring added-value business expansion in a variety of entertainment 
fields while contributing to the enhancement of the Group’s corporate value.

The acquisition cost was ¥1,091 million ($13,120 thousand) by cash. 
Goodwill arising from the acquisition for expected future earnings was 
¥2,055 million ($24,714 thousand), and has been amortized by the 
straight-line method over ten years. Since the acquisition date was 
deemed April 1, 2010, operating results of Tsuburaya for the year ended 
March 31, 2011 are fully consolidated.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition are 
as follows:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 

U.S. Dollars

Current assets ¥  611 $  7,348

Non-current assets 456 5,484

  Total assets 1,067 12,832

Current liabilities 1,919 23,078

Long-term liabilities 112 1,346

  Total liabilities ¥2,031 $24,425

Acquisition of shares of DF
On April 16, 2010, the Company acquired a 74.3% ownership of DF. 

DF’s main businesses are planning and production of computer graphics. 
The Company expects that DF’s cutting-edge computer graphic technolo-
gies will enable strengthening of planning and development in amusement 
machine field, and implementing synergies with the Group’s 3D animation 
technologies. The Company believes that acquisition of DF will bring a lot 
of added-value synergy in every movie-entertainment fields while contrib-
uting to the enhancement of the Group’s corporate value.

The acquisition cost was ¥650 million ($7,817 thousand) by cash. 
Goodwill arising from the acquisition for expected future earnings was 
¥579 million ($6,963 thousand), and has been amortized by the straight-
line method over ten years. Since the acquisition date was deemed April 
1, 2010, operating results of DF for the year ended March 31, 2011 are 
fully consolidated.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition are 
as follows:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 

U.S. Dollars

Current assets ¥423 $5,087

Non-current assets 181 2,176

Total assets 604 7,263

Current liabilities 509 6,121

Long-term liabilities 1 12

Total liabilities ¥510 $6,133

Acquisition of shares of MICROCABIN
On January 14, 2011, the Company acquired an 85.0% ownership of 

MICROCABIN from AQ INTERACTIVE INC. (“AQI”). MICROCABIN’s main 
businesses are planning and development of computer software for video 
games and pachinko machines. The Company believes that this acquisi-
tion will contribute to enhancing the Group’s corporate value, due mainly 
to the following two reasons: (1) the acquisition will strengthen ties with 
the AQI group, which owns a valuable online content portfolio; and (2) it 
will bring synergies of intellectual properties and technologies in the field 
of Pachinko/Pachislot machines.

The acquisition cost was ¥756 million ($9,092 thousand) by cash. 
Goodwill arising from the acquisition for expected future earnings was 
¥338 million ($4,064 thousand), and has been amortized by the straight-
line method over ten years. Since the acquisition of MICROCABIN 
occurred in January 2011, operating results only for the three months 
ended March 31, 2011 are consolidated.
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Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition are 
as follows:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 

U.S. Dollars

Current assets ¥535 $  6,434

Non-current assets 319 3,836

Total assets 854 10,270

Current liabilities 204 2,453

Long-term liabilities 159 1,912

Total liabilities ¥363 $  4,365

If this acquisition had been completed as of April 1, 2010, the begin-
ning of the current fiscal year, the approximate effect on the consolidated 
financial statement of income for the year ended March 31, 2011 (unau-
dited) would be as follows:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 

U.S. Dollars

Net sales ¥440 $ 5,291

Operating income (93) (1,118)

Income before income taxes and minority 
interests (93) (1,118)

Net income (79) (950)

Yen U.S. Dollars

Net income per share ¥(240.45) $(2.89)

4. Inventories

Inventories at March 31, 2010 and 2011 consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of  

U.S. Dollars 

2010 2011 2011

Merchandise ¥   107 ¥   300 $  3,607

Work in process 1,027 826 9,933

Raw material and supplies 385 231 2,778

Total ¥1,519 ¥1,357 $16,319

5. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures

On March 10, 2008, the ASBJ revised ASBJ Statement No. 10 
“Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments” and issued ASBJ Guid-
ance No. 19 “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments 
and Related Disclosures”. The Group applied the revised accounting 
standard and the new guidance effective from the fiscal year ended March 
31, 2010.

(1) Policy for financial instruments
Basically, the Group’s use of its surplus funds is limited to low-risk 

financial assets. The Group finances its working capital by short-term bank 
loans. For mid- or long-term cash demands, the way of raising funds are 
determined after considering the market environment and its purposes.

(2) Nature, risks arising from financial instruments, and risk management
Notes and accounts receivable are arising from an ordinary course of 

businesses and are subject to credit risks of customers. The Sales Division 
controls these risks by reviewing outstanding balances and due dates of 
each customer in accordance with internal rules for controlling receiv-
ables, as well as by monitoring customers’ financial conditions to promptly 
obtain information about possible bad debts.

Most investment securities are related to capital and/or operating 
alliances with business partners, and are subject to market value volatility 
risks. In order to control these risks, fair value, financial condition of 
investees, and related business relationships are periodically reviewed in 
accordance with internal rules for controlling investment securities.

Financial instruments with embedded derivative instruments are also 
subject to market value volatility risks. Finance and Budget Department 
controls these risks in accordance with internal rules for controlling invest-
ment securities.

Notes and accounts payable are arising from an ordinary course of 
businesses and payable within a year. Income taxes payable include 
income tax, inhabitant tax, and enterprise tax and are payable within a 
year. These items are subject to liquidity risks of default. To control these 
risks, the Group’s Finance and Budget Department prepares and updates 
cash-flow plans and maintains appropriate amounts of ready liquidity 
based on reports from internal sections.

Fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted prices in 
active markets. If quoted price is not available, other rational valuation 
techniques are used instead. Because such valuation techniques include 
certain assumptions, results may differ if different assumptions are used 
in the valuation.

Financial instruments whose fair value is readily determinable at March 
31, 2010 are as follows:

Millions of Yen

Carrying 
amount Fair value Difference

Assets:

  (1) Cash and cash equivalents ¥15,906 ¥15,906 ¥  —

  (2) �Time deposits (included in other 
current assets) 10 10

  (3) Notes and accounts receivable 33,088 33,088 —

  (4) Investment securities

  (a) Held-to-maturity securities 400 314 (85)

  (b) Available-for-sale securities 5,304 5,304 —

  (5) Long-term loans receivable 345 346 0

Total ¥55,055 ¥54,970 ¥(84)

Liabilities:

  (6) Notes and accounts payable 26,610 26,610 —

  (7) Current portion of long-term debt 720 720 0

  (8) Income taxes payable 3,562 3,562 —

  (9) Long-term debt 1,510 1,510 0

Total ¥32,403 ¥32,404 ¥   0

Notes:
(1), (2), (3), (6), and (8) —As these items are settled within a year and 

have fair values approximately equal to their carrying amounts, they are 
stated at the carrying amounts.

(4) —Fair value of equity securities is stated at market price whereas 
that of debt securities are stated at amount obtained from financial institu-
tions. Fair value information categorized by holding purposes of invest-
ment securities is discussed in Note 6.

(5) —Fair value of long-term loans receivable is stated at present value 
of future cash flows. Discount rate is computed by adding spreads to 
appropriate indices such as yield of Japanese government bond.
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(7) and (9) —Long-term debt comprises of bonds issued by the Com-
pany and consolidated subsidiaries. Because such bonds do not have 
market prices, fair value of bonds is stated at present value of total 
amount of its principal and interest discounted by an assumed rate that 
would be applicable to bonds issued under the same conditions. Bonds 
with variable interest rates are stated at carrying amount because fair 
value of such bonds is considered approximately equal to its carrying 
amount based on the following assumptions; (a) variable interest rates 
reflect the current market rate, and (b) the Company’s credit status has 
not significantly changed after the issuance. Bonds with fixed interest 
rates are stated at present value of a total amount of its principal and 
interest discounted by a rate determined considering its remaining periods 
and credit risks.

Financial instruments which do not have quoted market prices and 
whose fair value is not reliably determinable are not included in the table 
above. Such financial instruments at March 31, 2010 are as follows:

Millions of Yen

Balance included in the consolidated balance sheet

Investment securities ¥   610

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 10

Investments in affiliates 1,588

Total ¥2,210

Detailed information about investment securities is discussed in Note 6.

Financial instruments whose fair value is readily determinable at March 
31, 2011 are as follows:

Millions of Yen

Carrying 
amount Fair value Difference

Assets:

  (1) Cash and cash equivalents ¥15,632 ¥15,632 ¥    —

  (2) �Time deposits (included in other 
current assets) 240 240 —

  (3) Notes and accounts receivable 27,948

Less: �Allowance for doubtful 
accounts (184)

Net amount 27,763 27,763 —

  (4) Investment securities

  (a) Held-to-maturity securities 400 299 (100)

  (b) Available-for-sale securities 5,447 5,447 —

  (5) Long-term loans receivable 417

Less: �Allowance for doubtful 
accounts (388)

Net amount 29 28 (0)

Total ¥49,513 ¥49,412 ¥(100)

Liabilities:

  (6) Notes and accounts payable 17,939 17,939 —

  (7) Current portion of long-term debt 784 784 0

  (8) Short-term bank loans 85 85 —

  (9) Income taxes payable 4,217 4,217 —

  (10) Long-term debt 965 962 (2)

Total ¥23,991 ¥23,990 ¥    (1)

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Carrying 
amount Fair value Difference

Assets:

  (1) Cash and cash equivalents $187,997 $187,997 $       —

  (2) �Time deposits (included in other 
current assets) 2,886 2,886 —

  (3) Notes and accounts receivable 336,115

Less: �Allowance for doubtful 
accounts (2,212)

Net amount 333,890 333,890 —

  (4) Investment securities

(a) Held-to-maturity securities 4,810 3,595 (1,202)

(b) Available-for-sale securities 65,508 65,508 —

  (5) Long-term loans receivable 5,015

Less: �Allowance for doubtful 
accounts (4,666)

Net amount 348 336 (0)

Total $595,466 $594,251 $(1,202)

Liabilities:

  (6) Notes and accounts payable 215,742 215,742 —

  (7) Current portion of long-term debt 9,428 9,428 0

  (8) Short-term bank loans 1,022 1,022 —

  (9) Income taxes payable 50,715 50,715 —

  (10) Long-term debt 11,605 11,569 (24)

Total $288,526 $288,514 $     (12)

Notes:
(1), (2), (3), (6), (8), and (9) —As these items are settled within a year 

and have fair values approximately equal to their carrying amounts, they 
are stated at the carrying amounts.

(4) —Fair value of equity securities is stated at market price whereas 
that of debt securities are stated at amount obtained from financial institu-
tions. Fair value information categorized by holding purposes of invest-
ment securities is discussed in Note 6.

(5) —Fair value of long-term loans receivable is stated at present value 
of future cash flows. Discount rate is computed by adding spreads to 
appropriate indices such as yield of Japanese government bond.

(7) and (10) —Long-term debt comprises of bonds issued by the 
Company and consolidated subsidiaries and bank loans.

Bonds
Because such bonds do not have market prices, fair value of bonds is 

stated at present value of total amount of its principal and interest dis-
counted by an assumed rate that would be applicable to bonds issued 
under the same conditions. Bonds with variable interest rates are stated at 
carrying amount because fair value of such bonds is considered approxi-
mately equal to its carrying amount based on the following assumptions; 
(a) variable interest rates reflect the current market rate, and (b) the 
Company’s credit status has not significantly changed after the issuance. 
Bonds with fixed interest rates are stated at present value of a total 
amount of its principal and interest discounted by a rate determined 
considering its remaining periods and credit risks.
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Bank loans
Fair value of bank loans is stated at present value of total amount of its 

principal and interest discounted by an assumed rate that would be appli-
cable to bank loans financed under the same conditions. In determining 
fair value of bank loans with interest rate swap agreements, bank loans 
and such derivatives are treated as a set because the Group’s interest rate 
swap agreements qualify for hedge accounting and meet specific criteria 
under Japanese GAAP.

Financial instruments which do not have quoted market prices and 
whose fair value is not reliably determinable are not included in the table 
above. Such financial instruments at March 31, 2011 are as follows:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 

U.S. Dollars

Balance included in the consolidated 
balance sheet

Investment securities ¥   410 $  4,930

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 10 120

Investments in affiliates 2,198 26,434

Total ¥2,618 $31,485

Detailed information about investment securities is discussed in Note 6.

Maturity analysis for financial assets at March 31, 2011 is as follows:

Millions of Yen

Due within 
one year

Due after 
one year 

through five 
years

Due after 
five years 

through ten 
years

Due after 
ten years

(1) �Cash and cash 
equivalents ¥15,632 ¥ — ¥— ¥   —

(2) �Time deposits 
(included in other 
current assets) 240 — — —

(3) �Notes and accounts 
receivable 27,948 — — —

(4) Investment securities

  (a) �Held-to-maturity 
securities — — — 400

  (b) �Available-for-sale 
securities

  Debt securities — — — 99

  Other securities — — — 100

(5) �Long-term loans 
receivable — 29 — —

  Total ¥43,821 ¥29 ¥— ¥599

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Due within 
one year

Due after 
one year 

through five 
years

Due after 
five years 

through ten 
years

Due after 
ten years

(1) �Cash and cash 
equivalents $187,997 $   — $— $      —

(2) �Time deposits 
(included in other 
current assets) 2,886 — — —

(3) �Notes and accounts 
receivable 336,115 — — —

(4) Investment securities

  (a) �Held-to-maturity 
securities — — — 4,810

  (b) �Available-for-sale 
securities

  Debt securities — — — 1,190

  Other securities — — — 1,202

(5) �Long-term loans 
receivable — 348 — —

  Total $527,011 $348 $— $7,203

Note:
Amounts of long-term loans receivable in the table above are stated 

after deducting the allowance for doubtful accounts of ¥388 million 
($4,666 thousand).

6. Investment Securities

(a) The following table summarizes information of held-to-maturity securi-
ties and available-for-sale securities with available fair values at March 31, 
2010 and 2011:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of  

U.S. Dollars 

2010 2011 2011

Held-to-maturity securities

�Balance included in the 
consolidated balance sheets ¥    400 ¥    400 $   4,810

Fair value 314 299 3,595

Net unrealized loss (85) (100) (1,202)

Available-for-sale securities

—Equity securities

Acquisition cost 6,244 6,636 79,807

Fair value 5,109 5,247 63,102

Net unrealized loss (1,136) (1,390) (16,716)

—Debt securities

Acquisition cost 172 145 1,743

Fair value 193 99 1,190

Net unrealized gain (loss) 22 (46) (553)

—Other

Acquisition cost — 100 1,202

Fair value — 100 1,202

Net unrealized gain — — —
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(b) The following table summarizes carrying value of available-for-sale 
securities whose fair value is not readily determinable at March 31, 2010 
and 2011:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of  

U.S. Dollars 

2010 2011 2011

Stocks ¥  28 ¥  27 $   324

Investments in various partnerships 
and others 582 383 4,606

The Company recognized ¥5 million of loss on write-down of invest-
ment securities whose fair value is not readily determinable for the year 
ended March 31, 2010. No such loss was recognized for the year ended 
March 31, 2011.

7. Fair Value of Derivative Transactions

Fair values of the Group’s derivative financial instruments at March 31, 
2010 and 2011 are as follows:

Millions of Yen

2010

Contract Amount

Within one 
year

Over one 
year Fair Value

Valuation 
Gain (Loss)

Financial instruments 
with embedded derivative 
instruments (Non-listed) ¥15 ¥157 ¥194 ¥21

Millions of Yen

2011

Contract Amount

Within one 
year

Over one 
year Fair Value

Valuation 
Gain (Loss)

Financial instruments 
with embedded derivative 
instruments (Non-listed) ¥— ¥145 ¥99 ¥(46)

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2011

Contract Amount

Within one 
year

Over one 
year Fair Value

Valuation 
Gain (Loss)

Financial instruments 
with embedded derivative 
instruments (Non-listed) $— $1,743 $1,190 $(553)

Note:
(1) The fair values in the table above are stated at amounts obtained from 
financial institutions, the counter parties of the derivative transactions.

(2) The valuation gain and loss in the table above are computed based on 
the fair value of the financial instruments with embedded derivative instru-
ments taken as a whole because they cannot be reasonably bifurcated 
and remeasured.

(3) Contract amounts in the table above are stated at the book value as of 
the beginning of the fiscal year.

8. Long-Lived Assets

The Group reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment at March 31, 
2010 and 2011 and as a result, recognized impairment losses of ¥18 
million and ¥44 million ($529 thousand), respectively.

For the year ended March 31, 2010, the Group recognized the impair-
ment losses for unutilized property and equipment. As no future cash 
flows were expected, these assets were written down to zero.

For the year ended March 31, 2011, certain property and equipment 
were written down to zero because of early disposal in relation to planning 
of business office relocation.

9. Leases

The Group leases certain equipment. The following information sum-
marizes finance lease contracts that do not transfer ownership of the leased 
property to the lessee and that were entered into prior to April 1, 2008.

Assumed amounts of (a) acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation 
and net book value and (b) lease obligations at March 31, 2010 and 2011 
are as follows:

(a) Acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation and net book value

Millions of Yen
Thousands of  

U.S. Dollars 

2010 2011 2011

Equipment:

Acquisition cost ¥10 ¥10 $120

Accumulated depreciation 5 7 84

Net book value ¥  5 ¥  2 $  24

(b) Lease obligations

Millions of Yen
Thousands of  

U.S. Dollars 

2010 2011 2011

Payments due within one year ¥2 ¥1 $12

Payments due after one year 2 1 12

Total ¥5 ¥2 $24

As the aggregated amount of lease obligations is immaterial, interest 
expenses are included in the assumed acquisition cost and lease obliga-
tions at each balance sheet date.

Amounts of lease payments and depreciation expense equivalent for 
the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2011 are as follows:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of  

U.S. Dollars 

2010 2011 2011

Lease payments ¥14 ¥2 $24

Depreciation expense equivalent 14 2 24

Depreciation expense equivalent is computed by the straight-line 
method over the lease period with no residual value.

(c) The minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable operating 
leases at March 31, 2011 were as follows:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 

U.S. Dollars

Due within one year ¥   732 $  8,803

Due after one year 628 7,552

Total ¥1,360 $16,355
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10. Short-Term Bank Loans and Long-Term Debt

The average interest rate applicable to the short-term bank loans was 
0.64% at March 31, 2011.

The following table summarizes the Group’s long-term debt at March 
31, 2010 and 2011:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of  

U.S. Dollars 

2010 2011 2011

Long-term debt:

 � Long-term bank loans due October 
20, 2016

�Current portion with weighted 
average interest rate of 3.11% ¥     — ¥     44 $     529

�Non-current portion with weighted 
average interest rate of 1.32% — 65 781

 � Unsecured bonds with variable 
interest rate issued on June 27, 
2008 and due June 27, 2013

Current portion 600 600 7,215

Non-current 1,500 900 10,823

 � 0.88% unsecured bonds issued on 
March 31, 2005 and due March 
31, 2011

Current portion 100 — —

Non-current — — —

 � 0.76% unsecured bonds issued 
on July 29, 2005 and due July 29, 
2011

Current portion 20 10 120

Non-current 10 — —

 � 1.61% unsecured bonds issued on 
August 31, 2006 and due August 
31, 2011

Current portion — 30 360

Non-current — — —

 � 1.43% unsecured bonds issued on 
August 31, 2006 and due August 
31, 2011

Current portion — 10 120

Non-current — — —

 � 1.42% unsecured bonds issued on 
March 30, 2007 and due March 
30, 2012

Current portion — 40 481

Non-current — — —

 � 1.54% unsecured bonds issued on 
March 25, 2005 and due March 
23, 2012

Current portion — 50 601

Non-current — — —

Total ¥2,230 ¥1,749 $21,034

The variable interest rate of the unsecured bonds in the above table is 
6-month TIBOR plus 0.25%.

Assets pledged as collateral for long-term bank loans of ¥30 million 
($360 thousand) and bonds of ¥10 million ($120 thousand) at March 31, 
2011 were ¥40 million ($481 thousand) of time deposits.

The aggregate amounts of annual maturity of long-term debt at March 
31, 2011 are as follows:

Year ending March 31, Millions of Yen
Thousands of 

U.S. Dollars

2012 ¥   784 $  9,428

2013 614 7,384

2014 314 3,776

2015 14 168

2016 14 168

2017 8 96

Total ¥1,749 $21,034

11. Credit Lines

The Group entered into line of credit and over-draft agreements with 
four banks for the purpose of efficient management of operation fund. The 
following is the summary of the line of credit at March 31, 2010 and 2011:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of  

U.S. Dollars 

2010 2011 2011

Total amount of the line of credit ¥19,000 ¥17,100 $205,652

Outstanding balance — (85) (1,022)

Remaining amount of the line of 
credit ¥19,000 ¥17,015 $204,630

12. Retirement Benefits

Accrued retirement benefits for employees at March 31, 2010 and 
2011 is as follows:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of  

U.S. Dollars 

2010 2011 2011

Projected benefit obligation ¥346 ¥409 $4,918

Unrecognized actuarial differences (71) (69) (829)

Accrued retirement benefits ¥274 ¥339 $4,076

Net periodic costs for the employees’ retirement benefits for the years 
ended March 31, 2010 and 2011 consisted of the following components:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of  

U.S. Dollars 

2010 2011 2011

Service cost ¥45 ¥47 $565

Interest cost 5 7 84

Amortization of actuarial differences 18 20 240

Other — 4 48

Net periodic benefit costs ¥70 ¥79 $950

The retirement benefit costs of certain domestic consolidated subsid-
iaries which adopt the simplified method for calculating projected benefit 
obligation are accounted for as service cost.

The assumptions used for the above plans for the years ended March 
31, 2010 and 2011 are as follows:

Discount rate 2.0%

Allocation of total estimated 
retirement benefit obligation to each 
accounting period

straight-line method over  
service periods

Amortization period of actuarial 
differences

5 years
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13. Contingencies

In its agency services, the Company guarantees payments of customers 
(Pachinko halls) to the sellers, manufacturers of Pachinko and Pachislot 
machines. The total amount of such guarantees at March 31, 2011 was 
¥824 million ($9,909 thousand).

14. Income Taxes

The significant components of deferred tax assets at March 31, 2010 
and 2011 are as follows:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of  

U.S. Dollars 

2010 2011 2011

Deferred tax assets:

Amortization ¥    205 ¥    199 $   2,393

Allowance for doubtful accounts 94 208 2,501

Accrued bonuses 111 127 1,527

Retirement benefits for employees 111 138 1,659

Asset retirement obligations — 117 1,407

Loss on devaluation of 
merchandising right advances 295 378 4,546

Loss on write-down of investment 
securities 261 51 613

Unrealized loss on investment 
securities 462 565 6,794

Loss on investments in securities 201 169 2,032

Loss on devaluation of cash 
advances — 242 2,910

Enterprise taxes 269 318 3,824

Tax loss carryforwards 1,602 2,593 31,184

Other 186 381 4,582

Gross deferred tax assets 3,803 5,491 66,037

Valuation allowances (1,871) (3,251) (39,098)

Total deferred tax assets 1,931 2,240 26,939

Deferred tax liabilities:

Asset retirement costs — 44 529

Other — 15 180

Total deferred tax liabilities — 59 709

Net deferred tax assets ¥ 1,931 ¥ 2,180 $ 26,217

Balances of deferred tax assets and liabilities included in the consoli-
dated balance sheets are as follows:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of  

U.S. Dollars 

2010 2011 2011

Deferred tax assets—current ¥   807 ¥1,249 $15,021

Deferred tax assets—non-current 1,124 942 11,328

Deferred tax liabilities—non-current 
(included in other long-term 
liabilities) — (11) (132)

Net deferred tax assets ¥1,931 ¥2,180 $26,217

Income taxes in Japan consist of corporation tax, inhabitants’ taxes and 
enterprise taxes. Reconciliation of the differences between the statutory 
tax rates and the effective income tax rates for the years ended March 31, 
2010 and 2011 is as follows:

2010 2011

Statutory tax rate 40.7% 40.7%

Adjustments:

Per capita levy of inhabitant tax 0.5 0.3

Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 1.9 0.9

Income not taxable for tax purpose (0.5) (0.3)

Equity in losses (earnings) of affiliates 1.6 (1.7)

Effect of tax return amendment 1.0 —

Accrued bonuses to directors and  
corporate auditors 0.8 0.7

Change in valuation allowance 5.4 3.4

Amortization of goodwill 0.5 1.5

Unrecognized tax benefit 0.8 —

Liquidation of a subsidiary — (1.2)

Other 1.3 (0.4)

Effective income tax rate 54.0% 43.9%

15. Net Assets

Under the Companies Act of Japan (the “Companies Act”), the entire 
amount of the issuance price of shares is required to be accounted for as 
capital, although a company may, by resolution of its Board of Directors, 
account for an amount not exceeding one half of the issue price of new 
shares as additional paid-in capital, which is one component of capital 
surplus. The Companies Act also provides that when a company makes 
cash appropriations such as cash dividends from capital surplus or 
earnings surplus, the company has to set aside at least of 10% of the 
total amount of the cash payments as earnings reserve or additional 
paid-in capital until the total amount of capital surplus and earnings 
surplus equals 25% of common stock. The total amount of the Com-
pany’s capital surplus and earnings surplus has reached 25% of common 
stock and, therefore, the Company is no longer required to provide for the 
earnings surplus.

Year-end dividends are to be approved by the shareholders at a share-
holders meeting held subsequent to the fiscal year to which the dividends 
are applicable. Under the Companies Act, interim dividends may also be 
paid anytime upon resolution of the Board of Directors, subject to certain 
limitations imposed by the Companies Act. The maximum amount that a 
company can distribute as dividends is calculated based on the non-
consolidated financial statements of the company in accordance with the 
Companies Act.
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16. Related Party Transactions

Transactions with and balances due to or due from related parties as of 
and for the years ended March 31, 2010 and 2011 are as follows:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of  

U.S. Dollars 

2010 2011 2011

(Affiliates)

Rodeo Co., Ltd.

Account balances

Accounts payable — trade ¥  7,909 ¥     101 $    1,214

Transactions

Purchase of merchandise 7,918 32,292 388,358

Purchase discount — 199 2,393

(Sister company)

Bisty Co., Ltd.

Account balances

Accounts receivable — trade 846 444 5,339

Accounts payable 16,081 12,790 153,818

Advance received 733 722 8,683

Other payable 366 — —

Advance paid — 58 697

Transactions

Commissions received 14,349 12,369 148,755

Sales of merchandising rights 1,728 981 11,797

Purchase of merchandise 17,891 16,611 199,771

�Purchase of merchandising 
rights 32 — —

The terms and conditions of the above transactions have been deter-
mined based on the arm’s length and normal market price levels.

17. Comprehensive Income

Total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2010 was 
the following:

Millions of Yen

Comprehensive income attributable to:

Shareholders of FIELDS CORPORATION ¥3,569

Minority interests 29

Total comprehensive income ¥3,598

Other comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2010 
consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen

Other comprehensive income:

Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities ¥280

Foreign currency translation adjustments 0

Share of other comprehensive income in affiliates 
accounted for by the equity method (0)

Total comprehensive income ¥280

18. Subsequent Event

Year-end dividends
At the general shareholders meeting of the Company held on June 22, 

2011, the shareholders approved the payment of the year-end cash divi-
dends totaling ¥830 million ($9,981 thousand), or ¥2,500.00 ($30.06) 
per share.
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19. Segment Information

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010:

Business Segment:

Millions of Yen

Pachinko/
Pachislot 

(PS) Field

Sports 
Entertain-

ment Field Mobile Field Other Field Total
Elimination and/ 

or corporate Consolidation

Sales to third parties ¥62,120 ¥2,385 ¥1,818 ¥  18 ¥66,342 ¥� — ¥66,342

Inter-segment sales and transfers 259 31 2 601 895 (895) —

Total sales 62,379 2,416 1,821 619 67,237 (895) 66,342

Operating expense 54,246 2,741 1,427 689 59,105 (887) 58,217

Operating income (loss) ¥  8,133 ¥� (324) ¥� 393 ¥�(70) ¥  8,131 ¥� (7) ¥  8,124

Total assets ¥80,885 ¥1,631 ¥1,018 ¥518 ¥84,055 ¥(2,726) ¥81,329

Depreciation 1,153 95 120 10 1,380 (12) 1,368

Impairment losses — 18 — — 18 — 18

Capital expenditure 700 19 186 13 920 — 920

Geographical Segment:
For the year ended March 31, 2010, geographical segment information is not presented since the operating results and the total assets in jurisdictions 

other than Japan were insignificant.

Overseas sales:
For the year ended March 31, 2010, information of overseas sales is not presented since the sales earned in jurisdictions other than Japan were 

insignificant.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011:

Effective from this fiscal year, segment information is presented according to the Company’s management approach based on “Accounting Standard 
for Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” and “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Disclosures about Segments of an 
Enterprise and Related Information” issued by the ASBJ.

The reportable segments are component of the Group for which separate financial information is available, and whose operating results are reviewed 
periodically by the Board of Directors to determine allocation of operating resources and evaluate its performance.

The Group classifies its business into four reportable segments, namely, (1) Pachinko/Pachislot (PS) Field, (2) Mobile Field, (3) Sports Entertainment 
Field, and (4) Other Field, as summarized below.

(1) Pachinko/Pachislot (PS) Field—Purchase, sales, planning, and development of Pachinko and Pachislot machines and other related businesses
(2) Mobile Field—Distribution of mobile content and other related businesses
(3) Sports Entertainment Field—Sports management businesses
(4) Other Field—Planning and production of movie and TV content, and planning, production and sales of character goods and related businesses

Segment information of the Group as of and for the year ended March 31, 2011 is as follows:

Millions of Yen

Pachinko/
Pachislot  

(PS) Field Mobile Field

Sports 
Entertain-

ment Field Other Field Total Adjustments Consolidated

Sales to third parties ¥93,880 ¥1,990 ¥2,143 ¥5,578 ¥103,593 ¥       — ¥103,593

Inter-segment sales and transfers 234 41 27 303 606 (606) —

Total sales 94,115 2,032 2,171 5,881 104,200 (606) 103,593

Segment income (loss) ¥12,866 ¥   236 ¥  (290) ¥   315 ¥  13,127 ¥        8 ¥  13,136

Assets ¥75,210 ¥1,422 ¥   904 ¥6,128 ¥  83,667 ¥(4,695) ¥  78,971

Depreciation and amortization ¥  1,290 ¥   179 ¥     96 ¥   171 ¥    1,738 ¥       (4) ¥    1,734

Impairment losses 9 4 2 28 44 — 44

Investments in affiliates accounted for by the equity method 598 — — 1,398 1,996 — 1,996

Amortization of goodwill 24 — 212 270 507 — 507

Remaining balance of goodwill 340 — — 2,461 2,801 — 2,801

Capital expenditure 1,144 498 52 2,973 4,669 (14) 4,655
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Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Pachinko/
Pachislot  

(PS) Field Mobile Field

Sports 
Entertain-

ment Field Other Field Total Adjustments Consolidated

Sales to third parties $1,129,043 $23,932 $25,772 $67,083 $1,245,856 $      — $1,245,856

Inter-segment sales and transfers 2,814 493 324 3,644 7,288 (7,288) —

Total sales 1,131,870 24,437 26,109 70,727 1,253,156 (7,288) 1,245,856

Segment income (loss) $   154,732 $  2,838 $ (3,487) $  3,788 $   157,871 $        96 $   157,979

Assets $   904,509 $17,101 $10,871 $73,698 $1,006,217 $(56,464) $   949,741

Depreciation and amortization $     15,514 $  2,152 $  1,154 $  2,056 $     20,901 $       (48) $     20,853

Impairment losses 108 48 24 336 529 — 529

Investments in affiliates accounted for by the equity method 7,191 — — 16,812 24,004 — 24,004

Amortization of goodwill 288 — 2,549 3,247 6,097 — 6,097

Remaining balance of goodwill 4,088 — — 29,597 33,686 — 33,686

Capital expenditure 13,758 5,989 625 35,754 56,151 (168) 55,983

Note: Adjustments in the tables above are intersegment elimination.

Sales to major customers:

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 

U.S. Dollars

Pachinko/Pachislot (PS) Field

Bisty Co., Ltd. ¥13,350 $160,553

If the segment information for the year ended March 31, 2010 were prepared using the new segmentation, such information would be as follows:

Millions of Yen

Pachinko/
Pachislot  

(PS) Field Mobile Field

Sports 
Entertain-

ment Field Other Field Total Adjustments Consolidated

Sales to third parties ¥62,120 ¥1,818 ¥2,385 ¥     18 ¥66,342 ¥         — ¥66,342

Inter-segment sales and transfers 259 2 31 601 895 (895) —

Total sales 62,379 1,821 2,416 619 67,237 (895) 66,342

Segment income (loss) ¥  8,133 ¥   393 ¥  (324) ¥    (70) ¥  8,131 ¥       (7) ¥  8,124

Assets ¥80,885 ¥1,018 ¥1,631 ¥   518 ¥84,055 ¥(2,726) ¥81,329

Depreciation and amortization ¥  1,153 ¥   120 ¥     95 ¥     10 ¥  1,380 ¥     (12) ¥  1,368

Impairment losses — — 18 — 18 — 18

Investments in affiliates accounted for by the equity method 598 — — 1,393 1,991 — 1,991

Amortization of goodwill 16 — 70 — 87 — 87

Capital expenditure 700 186 19 13 920 — 920

Note: Adjustments in the table above are intersegment elimination.
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The Board of Directors of

FIELDS CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of FIELDS CORPORATION and its consolidated subsidiaries as of 

March 31, 2010 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of income for the years then ended, the consolidated statement 

of comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2011, and the related consolidated statements of changes in net assets and 

cash flows for the years then ended, expressed in Japanese yen. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the 

Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we plan 

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 

audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 

includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 

financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated finan-

cial position of FIELDS CORPORATION and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2010 and 2011, and the consolidated results 

of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan 

as described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

The U.S. dollar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect to the year ended March 31, 2011 are 

presented solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan. Our audit also included the translation of yen amounts into the U.S. dollar 

amounts and, in our opinion, such translation has been made on the basis set forth in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BDO Sanyu & Co.

Tokyo, Japan

June 22, 2011

Independent Auditors’ Report
FIELDS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Fields Corporation   Annual Report 2011

Financial Section

Fields Corporation   Annual Report 2011

65



Company name Fields Corporation

Corporate 
philosophy

The Greatest Leisure for All People

Established June 1988

Head office 
address

E Space Tower, 3-6 Maruyama-cho, Shibuya-ku, 
Tokyo 150-0044, Japan

Main business 
activities

1. �Planning and development of pachinko/pachislot 
machines

2. �Purchasing and sales of pachinko/pachislot 
machines

3. �Planning, development and sales of copyrighted 
characters and related content

4. �Planning, development and sales of video 
software

Paid-in capital ¥7,948 million

Number of 
employees

1,149 (consolidated)

Consolidated 
subsidiaries

Fields Jr. Corporation
FutureScope Corporation
Japan Sports Marketing Inc.
Lucent Pictures Entertainment, Inc.
Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd.
Digital Frontier Inc.
  8 other companies

Number of Regional and Branch Offices

Organization
As of April 1, 2011

Board of Statutory Auditors

Group Business

Pachinko/Pachislot Business

Business Division

Development Division

Contents Division

Sales Division

Planning and Administration Division

Corporate Division

Corporate Communications Office

Office of the Chairman

Internal Audit Office

General Meeting of Shareholders

Board of Directors

Chairman & CEO

President & COO

North Kanto  
Regional Office:

3 Branches

Tokyo Regional Office:
6 Branches

Kyushu 
Regional 
Office:
4 Branches

Chugoku-Shikoku 
Regional Office:
3 Branches

Nagoya Regional 
Office:

3 Branches

Osaka Regional Office:
4 Branches

Hokkaido-Tohoku 
Regional Office:
3 Branches

Corporate Profile
As of March 31, 2011

Fields Corporation   Annual Report 2011

66



1988 2008200319981993

1,200

600

0

1988 2008200319981993

600

300

0

2008200319981993

25

20

15

10

5

0 1988

*Consolidated figures from 2003

*�Number of subsidiaries consists of consolidated 
subsidiaries and equity-method affiliates

1987
r �Built the Hokuyo Building in Nagoya, embarked on surveys and research into pachinko/pachislot 

machines and computer management systems

1988
r �Established Toyo Shoji Co., Ltd. (currently Fields Corporation), marking full-scale launch of 

pachinko/pachislot machine sales and hall production business

1992
r �Acquired Leisure Nippon News Company and began formulating vision for the pachinko industry
r �Launched “Hall TV,” a pachinko hall management support system, to provide information faster 

than anywhere else

1995
r �Launched “Pachinko Information Station,” a satellite broadcast for the pachinko industry, jointly 

with MITSUI & CO., LTD.

1999
r �Obtained ISO 9002 certification (Sales Division) to provide superior operational quality to customers

2001
r �Entered a basic exclusive distributorship agreement with Sammy Corporation subsidiary and 

pachinko/pachislot machine manufacturer Rodeo Co., Ltd.

2002
r �Held a pachinko hall design competition featuring architects from around the world

2003
r �Listed shares on the JASDAQ market
r �Entered a basic exclusive distributorship agreement with SANKYO CO., LTD. subsidiary and 

pachinko/pachislot machine manufacturer Bisty Co., Ltd.

2006
r �Invested in FutureScope Corporation ahead of full-scale entry into the mobile business

2008
r �Established business tie-up with KYORAKU SANGYO

2010
r �Listed shares on the Osaka Securities Exchange (JASDAQ standard) following merger of the 

JASDAQ Securities Exchange and Osaka Securities Exchange
r �Established HERO’S Inc. to create and nurture IP utilizing monthly comic magazines
r �Consolidated Tsuburaya Productions Co., Ltd., owner of the “Ultraman” series and other quality IP
r �Consolidated Digital Frontier Inc., a company with high-quality video technology, to deliver higher 

value-added IP
r �Jointly established IP Bros. Incorporated with NHN Japan Corporation to expand and enhance 

online services

2011
r �Consolidated MICROCABIN CORP., a company with sophisticated technological capabilities in the 

development of video software

Corporate History

From 1988:	 Seeking a more open and flexible distribution model for pachinko/pachislot machines
	 Taking advantage of our strength as an independent distributor, Fields changed the conventional practice of the industry, in which each pachinko hall only 

installed machines from a single maker. Hall operators are now able to select the optimal mix of machines from a wide range of options from different makers 
through our practical proposals, which are based on meticulous marketing. Our innovation and flexible distribution has contributed to increasing fan satis-
faction and enhanced the sales channels of makers.

From 1998:	E volving into a content provider
	 Foreseeing the evolution of the liquid crystal displays (LCDs) in pachinko/pachislot machines and recognizing the importance of machines featuring stimu-

lating gameplay for attracting fans, Fields formed business alliances with pachislot and pachinko makers to make these new machines possible. Fields was 
the first to release pachinko/pachislot machines featuring highly animated content and exciting story lines associated with well-known characters, by capital-
izing on the rapid advances in LCDs and semiconductor technologies. The machines were wildly successful and triggered a boom in entertainment machines. 
Since then we have focused on strengthening the planning and sales of content, while advancing the role of content in multiple directions through a wide 
range of channels in addition to pachinko/pachislot machines.

From 2008:	 Seeking to create new entertainment
	 Having come to understand the vital role that digital content plays as the basis for creating a competitive edge as a corporation, we have worked to acquire, 

create and nurture highly entertaining intellectual property (IP) in the mainstay pachinko/pachislot field and other entertainment fields as well as content 
which can attract new types of customers. As we have extensively compiled, analyzed and researched data on the leisure market, the business scheme 
pursued since our public listing has continued to evolve. Going forward, Fields is committed to promoting a range of measures that will culminate in new 
types of entertainment.

(People)

(Thousand units)

(Companies)

Change in Number of Employees

Change in Number of Machines Sold

Change in Number of Subsidiaries
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Stock Information
As of March 31, 2011

Stock Status

Total authorized shares 1,388,000

Total outstanding shares 347,000

Treasury stock 14,885

Number of shareholders 9,642

Number of Shareholders by Category

Individuals and 
others

54.42%

Treasury stock

4.29%

Financial institutions

8.82%

Foreign companies 
and others

10.63%

Other companies in Japan

20.96%

Securities companies

0.88%

Principal Shareholders

Name of shareholders Number of shares held Shareholding ratio (%)

Hidetoshi Yamamoto 86,750 25.00

SANKYO CO., LTD. 52,050 15.00

Takashi Yamamoto 36,128 10.41

Mint Co. 16,000 4.61

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust account) 9,609 2.77

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust account) 7,964 2.30

Trust & Custody Services Bank, Ltd. (Securities investment trust account) 7,680 2.21

Takashi Oya 4,500 1.30

BBH (LUX) FIDELITY FUNDS JAPAN ADVANTAGE 3,880 1.12

GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO. REG 3,622 1.04

*Excluding treasury stock held by the Company
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IR Events Held – Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2011 IR Schedule for the Fiscal Year Ending March 31, 2012

Promoting Vigorous IR Activities

Fields promotes vigorous IR activities in an effort first and foremost to 
build relationships of trust with shareholders and investors. We pursue a 
number of improvement measures with the aim of providing information 
that our stakeholders find most meaningful.

Our IR website undergoes ongoing efforts at improvement, reflecting 
evaluations and input offered from many site visitors, to ensure that the 
site is a source for timely and useful information. In the fiscal year ended 
March 31, 2011, our IR website received a Best Corporate Website 
Award from Nikko Investor Relations Co., Ltd. for rich content in a fiscal 
2010 ranking of websites of publicly listed companies. Rather than rest 
on this accomplishment, we will continue to do our best to deliver the 
most progressive information possible.

IR Information

IR event Participants

2010 April

May Financial results briefing for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010 80

June 22nd Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders

July

August 1Q financial results briefing for fiscal year ending March 31, 2011 50

Overseas IR (Hong Kong) activities

September Briefing on the Company for individual investors held (Osaka) 150

October Briefing on the Company for individual investors held (Sapporo) 130

Participation in JASDAQ Value IR Square 2010 (Tokyo) 100

November 2Q financial results briefing for fiscal year ending March 31, 2011 80

December

2011 January

February 3Q financial results briefing for fiscal year ending March 31, 2011 50

March

23rd Ordinary General Meeting of 
Shareholders
Briefing on the Company for individual 
investors (Fukuoka, Tokushima)

Announce 3Q financial 
results for fiscal year 
ending March 31, 2012

Announce 2Q financial 
results for fiscal year 
ending March 31, 2012

Announce 1Q 
financial results for 
fiscal year ending 
March 31, 2012

At Fields, we also believe it is important to create opportunities to provide 
briefings on the Company for individual investors. To this end, such brief-
ings were held in the cities of Osaka, Sapporo and Tokyo in the fiscal year 
ended March 31, 2011, with another two briefings for the fiscal year ending 
March 31, 2012 already held in the cities of Fukuoka and Tokushima. All 
briefings so far have been well attended, and have provided the opportunity 
to discuss Fields’ market position, business strategy and other issues.

Beyond these initiatives, we are committed to fostering greater under-
standing of Fields among more shareholders and investors through prompt, 
accurate and fair information disclosure, and the promotion of IR activities 
from various angles to ensure robust and proactive communication. To this 
end, we ask for your continued support of our IR activities going forward.

Scene from the venue of a briefing on the Company for individual investors (Tokushima)

For more information about IR please contact:

Corporate Communications Office, IR section

Phone  +81-3-5784-2111	 Email  ir@fields.biz

Announce financial 
results for the fiscal year 
ended March 2011

Fields Corporation   Annual Report 2011

Corporate Data

69



Fields Corporation

Corporate Communications Office
E Space Tower, 3-6 Maruyama-cho, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo 150-0044, Japan
Phone: +81-3-5784-2111    Fax: +81-3-5784-2112
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